
 

 

North Devon Council 
Brynsworthy Environment Centre 
Barnstaple 
North Devon   EX31 3NP 
 

K. Miles 

Chief Executive. 
 

 
 

 GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 
A meeting of the  Governance Committee will be held in the Barum Room - Brynsworthy 
on TUESDAY, 16TH NOVEMBER, 2021 at 6.30 pm. 
 
(NOTE: A location plan for the Brynsworthy Environment Centre is attached to the 
agenda front pages. From the 7 May 2021, the law requires all councils to hold 
formal meetings in person. The council is also ensuring that all venues used are 
Covid secure and that all appropriate measures are put in place. There are a 
limited number of spaces available for members of the public to attend. Please 
check the Council’s website for the latest information regarding the arrangements 
that are in place and the requirement to book a place 2 working days prior to the 
meeting Taking part in meetings (northdevon.gov.uk) 
 
 
Members of the Governance Committee Councillor Roome (Chair) 
 
Councillors Bushell, Campbell, Henderson, Luggar, Phillips, Topps, Turton and Walker 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

1.   To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meetings held on 8th June 2021 
and 10th October 2021  (Pages 7 - 20) 

2.   Apologies for absence   

3.   Items brought forward which in the opinion of the Chair should be considered by 
the meeting as a matter of urgency.   

4.   Declarations of Interests.   

 (Please complete the form provided at the meeting or telephone Corporate and 
Community Services to prepare a form for your signature before the meeting. 
Interests must be re-declared when the item is called, and Councillors must leave 
the room if necessary.) 

 

5.   To agree the agenda between Part 'A' and Part 'B' (Confidential Restricted 
Information).   

PART A 

6.   Half Yearly Report from the Chair of the Governance Committee  (Pages 21 - 
28) 

 Report by the Chair (attached). 

Public Document Pack

https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/council/councillors-and-committees/taking-part-in-meetings/


 
 

 
2 

 

 

7.   Appointment of External Auditors from 2023-24  (Pages 29 - 38) 

 Report by the Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive (report attached). 
 

8.   Internal Audit Progress Report 2021-22  (Pages 39 - 48) 

 Report by Devon Audit Partnership (DAP) (attached). 
 

9.   External Audit Progress Report and Sector Update   

 External Auditor to report. 
 

10.   Audit Recommendation Tracker  (Pages 49 - 70) 

 Report by the Chief Executive (attached). 
 

11.   Request for Approval to pay Feedback Compensation  (Pages 71 - 84) 

 Report by Customer Feedback and Service Improvement Officer (attached). 
 

12.   Annual Review of the Committee's Effectiveness - Update  (Pages 85 - 108) 

 Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive to report.  
 

13.   Update Report on the Conduct of Fraud Investigations   

 Senior Solicitor and Monitoring Officer to report. 
 

14.   Work Programme 2021-22  (Pages 109 - 112) 

 To consider the work programme (attached). 
 

15.   Exclusion of Public and Press and Restriction of Documents   

 RECOMMENDED: 
 
(a) That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 

and press be excluded from the meeting for the following item as it involves 
the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined by Paragraph 3 of Part 
1 of the Schedule 12A of the Act (as amended from time to time), namely 
information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information). 

 
(b) That all documents and reports relating to the item be confirmed as “Not for 

Publication”. 
 

PART B (CONFIDENTIAL RESTRICTED INFORMATION) 

16.   Corporate Risk Register  (Pages 113 - 160) 

 Report by the Chief Executive (attached). 
 



 
 

 
3 

 

 
 

 

If you have any enquiries about this agenda, please contact Corporate and 
Community Services, telephone 01271 388253 

 
 
 

8.11.21 
 



 
 

 
4 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

North Devon Council protocol on recording/filming at Council meetings 
 
The Council is committed to openness and transparency in its decision-making. 
Recording is permitted at Council meetings that are open to the public. The Council 
understands that some members of the public attending its meetings may not wish to be 
recorded. The Chairman of the meeting will make sure any request not to be recorded is 
respected.  
 
The rules that the Council will apply are:  
 

1. The recording must be overt (clearly visible to anyone at the meeting) and must 
not disrupt proceedings. The Council will put signs up at any meeting where we 
know recording is taking place.  

 
2. The Chairman of the meeting has absolute discretion to stop or suspend recording 

if, in their opinion, continuing to do so would prejudice proceedings at the meeting 
or if the person recording is in breach of these rules.  

 
3. We will ask for recording to stop if the meeting goes into ‘part B’ where the public 

is excluded for confidentiality reasons. In such a case, the person filming should 
leave the room ensuring all recording equipment is switched off. 

 
4. Any member of the public has the right not to be recorded. We ensure that 

agendas for, and signage at, Council meetings make it clear that recording can 
take place – anyone not wishing to be recorded must advise the Chairman at the 
earliest opportunity.  

 
5. The recording should not be edited in a way that could lead to misinterpretation or 

misrepresentation of the proceedings or in a way that ridicules or shows a lack of 
respect for those in the recording. The Council would expect any recording in 
breach of these rules to be removed from public view.  

 
Notes for guidance: 
 
Please contact either our Corporate and Community Services team or our 
Communications team in advance of the meeting you wish to record at so we can make 
all the necessary arrangements for you on the day.  
 
For more information contact the Corporate and Community Services team on 01271 
388253 or email memberservices@northdevon.gov.uk or the Communications Team 
on 01271 388278, email communications@northdevon.gov.uk. 



 
 

 
5 

 

 
 
North Devon Council offices at Brynsworthy, the full address is:  
Brynsworthy Environment Centre (BEC), Roundswell,  
Barnstaple, Devon, EX31 3NP. 
 
Sat Nav postcode is EX31 3NS. 
 
At the Roundswell roundabout take the exit onto the B3232, after about ½ mile take the 
first right, BEC is about ½ a mile on the right. 
 
Drive into the site, visitors parking is in front of the main building on the left hand side.  
 
On arrival at the main entrance, please sign in using the Track and Trace App and follow 
the signage and instructions in order to access the Meeting Rooms. Alternatively, dial 
8253 for Corporate and Community Services if you have any problems. 
 

 



 
 

 
6 

 

 



 

Governance Committee - 8 June 2021 
 

1 
 

NORTH DEVON COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of Governance Committee held at Barum Room - Brynsworthy 
on Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 at 6.30 pm 
 
PRESENT: Members: 

 
 Councillor Roome (Chair) 

 
 Councillors Bushell, Campbell, Henderson, Jenkins, Luggar, Phillips, 

Topps, Turton and Walker 
 

 Officers: 
 

 Chief Executive, Head of Resources, Business Information Systems 
Manager, Senior Solicitor/Monitoring Officer, Public Protection 
Manager and Emergency Planning Officer 
 

 Also Present: 
 

 Peter Barber (Grant Thornton), David Curnow (Devon Audit 
Partnership (DAP)), Paul Middlemass (DAP), Tariq Rahman (One 
West).  

 
   

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

There were no apologies for absence received. 
 

2.   TO APPROVE AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE 
MEETING HELD ON 9TH MARCH 2021 
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 9th March 2021 
(circulated previously) be approved as a correct record and signed by 
the Chair. 
 

3.   ITEMS BROUGHT FORWARD WHICH IN THE OPINION OF THE 
CHAIR SHOULD BE CONSIDERED BY THE MEETING AS A 
MATTER OF URGENCY. 
 

The Chair expressed his thanks on behalf of the Committee, for work and 
contribution from the Auditor, David Curnow, who was due to retire shortly. 
 
The Committee agreed to change the order of the agenda and consider items 20, 21 
and 22 before item 6 on the agenda. 
 

4.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS. 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 7

Agenda Item 1



 
Governance Committee - 8 June 2021 

 
 

 
2 

 

There were no declarations of interest announced. 
 

5.   EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS AND RESTRICTION OF 
DOCUMENTS 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

(a) That, under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 

public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following item 

as it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 

Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of the Schedule 12A of the Act (as amended 

from time to time), namely information relating to the financial or 

business affairs of any particular person (including the authority 

holding that information). 

 

(b) That, all documents and reports relating to the item be confirmed as 

“Not for Publication”. 

 

6.   INTERNAL AUDIT - CYBER SECURITY - MALWARE AND 
RANSOMWARE 
 

The Committee considered the Internal Audit Cyber Security, Malware and 
Ransomware Report by the DAP (circulated previously). 
 
Internal Audit advised that the Team from One West had delivered the report in 
partnership with the DAP. He had not been surprised with the opinion of ‘Limited 
Assurance’ as the area was one of high risk.  
 
The representative from One West (TR) advised that: 
 

 The focus of the work had been Malware and Ransomware, and was based 
on the National Cyber Security Centre’s (NCSC) 10-Step guidance. 

 The risks assessed were: 
o Disruption of network operation or information systems. 
o Information and data being intercepted and disclosed or stolen. 
o Malware damage to backup copies of data preventing recovery. 

 Credit should be given to the Business Information Systems Manager and 
Senior ICT and Project Support Officer for their continued hard work. 

 
In response to a question from the Chair, Internal Auditor (TR) advised that although 
a Multi-factor authentication (MFA) was recommended it was not agreed upon as the 
Microsoft 365 included an MFA element and the Authority was not able to use AAD 
authentication for on-premise login. 
 
In response to questions from the Committee, the Business Information Systems 
Manager advised that it was possible to forward emails, however, personal phones 
would be classed as unmanaged devices.  Options had been considered, such as 
purchasing all Members an iPhone, but that there would be associated costs in the 

Page 8

Agenda Item 1



 
Governance Committee - 8 June 2021 

 
 

 
3 

 

region of £7k. After consultation with Members iPads had been chosen for them for 
Council business. This included authentication, security measures and procedures.  
Council emails and agendas would continue to be accessed via the iPads. Councillor 
Bushell escalated this query to the Internal Auditors. 
 
The Internal Auditor (DC) confirmed that the use of unmanaged devices on a 
network could be a risk to security. 
 
In response to questions from the Committee, the Chief Executive advised that any 
future changes to the current system (using iPads) could have cost implications.  
 
The Head of Resources advised the Committee that there was no requirement to 
provide an IT Trainer post at the Authority as this was more efficiently covered 
through the use of online training as and when required. 
 
The Business Information Systems Manager advised that the new payroll / HR 
system would enable targeted training and education sessions to be delivered direct 
to the users. 
 

RESOLVED that the Internal Audit Cyber-Security, Malware and 
Ransomware report be noted. 
 

7.   INTERNAL AUDIT - PARKING OPERATIONS REPORT 
 

The Committee considered the Internal Audit Parking Operations Report by the DAP 
(circulated previously). 
 
The Internal Auditor (PM) advised that: 
 

 The review had included a review of the Health and Safety measures in place 
to protect staff during the pandemic. The overall systems in place had been 
found to be effective. 

 There had been a possible lack of continuity due to staffing changes within 
the team.  

 The review had focussed on penalty notices and collection rates. 

 Regular reports had now been requested from the contractor which would 
assist with the monitoring of the systems but it was felt that a suite of 
management reports would need to be developed. 

 
The Head of Resources advised that: 
 

 There was now a new online system for customers to use to buy and 
renew permits. Any members of the public who had difficulty with the 
system could call customer services, or the parking team, for assistance. 

 A regular report would be provided in relation to the Fixed Penalty Notices: 
number issues, recovery rates, age of debts, etc. 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 1



 
Governance Committee - 8 June 2021 

 
 

 
4 

 

Councillor Phillips noted that he had used the system and found it to take ten days to 
complete the process. He felt the system would need to be adapted to enable older 
users to access it easier, as he had not found it to be easy to use. 
 
The Chair suggested that a user group could have been created to test the system 
prior to purchase. 
 

RESOLVED that the Internal Audit Parking Operations Report be noted. 
 

8.   INTERNAL AUDIT - BUSINESS CONTINUITY REPORT 
 

The Committee considered the Internal Audit Business Continuity Report by the DAP 
(circulated previously). 
 
The Internal Auditor (PM) advised that: 
 

 This was an update of the 2019 report within which Business Continuity had 
been considered a red risk. The report set the focus and direction for the 
Authority going forward. 

 Work had been completed with the Service Manager (Public Protection) to 
identify the six priorities within the report which would then be completed 
within the next five months. 

 The Authority had programmed the outstanding works into an action plan, with 
a target completion date of October 2021 for the first phase. 

 
The Graduate Emergency Planning Officer confirmed that the majority of the Audit 
recommendations as identified in 2019 had now been met and, despite Covid-19, the 
Authority had been able to ensure the continuation of services. A documented 
control process had been created to ensure the continual monitoring of the 
procedures now implemented. 
 

RESOLVED that the Internal Audit - Business Continuity Report be 
noted. 
 

9.   RE-ADMITTANCE OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

RESOLVED that the Public and Press be re-admitted to the meeting. 
 

10.   INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 
 

The Committee considered a report by Devon Audit Partnership regarding the 
Internal Audit Plan Report 2020-21 (circulated previously). 
 
The Internal Auditor (DC) advised the Committee that: 
 

 The opinion of Internal Audit was that of “Reasonable Assurance”. 

Page 10

Agenda Item 1



 
Governance Committee - 8 June 2021 

 
 

 
5 

 

 To support the overall opinion of “Reasonable Assurance” they provided a 
Reasonable assurance rating on 9 of the 14 audits (with 2 substantial and 3 
limited opinions). 

 The statement of opinion was underpinned by: 
o Internal Control Framework 
o Risk Management 
o Governance Arrangements 
o And Performance Management 

 The ICT Cyber Security audit crossed all areas of the Authority’s work.  

 92% of the audits in the revised plan for the year had been delivered. The 
remaining audits had either been cancelled, deferred by the client, or rolled 
over into 2021/22. 

 The summary of audits delivered since March 2021 was provided in appendix 
1. 

 The Assurance Map in appendix 2 showed the current status of each audit. 

 The reports on some audits had been delayed due to issues presented by 
staff working remotely.  

 In relation to other Authorities, it was difficult to compare performance, but the 
DAP was satisfied that the audits were ‘on track’ and they were generally 
happy with progress. 

 
In response to questions from the Committee, the Head of Resources confirmed 
that: 
 

 Information could be extracted from the audits that cover specific business 
elements. 

 
RESOLVED that the Internal Audit Annual Report 2020-21 be 
approved. 
 

11.   EXTERNAL AUDIT - AUDIT PLAN 
 

The Committee considered a report by Grant Thornton regarding the External Audit 
– Audit Plan (circulated previously). 
 
The External Auditor (PB) highlighted the following: 
 

 The plan had been completed slightly later than planned although the 
planning had now been completed along with the interim works. 

 The Audits had determined that the materiality to be £1.1m for the Authority 
which equated to 2% of the prior year’s gross expenditure for the year. 

 Focus was to be made on the areas of greatest risk. These were the same as 
the previous year with one exception – that was the New payroll system / 
transfer of data. 

 Following a new Code of Audit Practice from the National Audit Office (NAO) 
there were three main changes to the Value for Money (VfM) work: 

o A new set of criteria 
o More extensive reporting 

Page 11

Agenda Item 1



 
Governance Committee - 8 June 2021 

 
 

 
6 

 

o The replacement of the binary (qualified/unqualified) approach to the 
VfM conclusions. 

 From 2022/2023 onwards there would be an increase in uncertainty as gaps 
in funding were experienced. 

 The proposed fee for the Audit had increased by £15,500. This included 
£9,000 for the additional works required on the VfM under the new NAO code, 
and £6,500 due to the revised audit standards required (as covered by 
appendix 1 of the report). 

 
The Head of Resources confirmed that there had been additional works required of 
the Auditors hence the increased fees.  The Public Sector Audit Appointments 
(PSAA) would have to approve the fees. 
 
  RESOLVED that the External Audit – Audit Plan be noted. 
 

12.   EXTERNAL AUDIT - INFORMING THE AUDIT RISK 
ASSESSMENT 
 

The Committee considered a report by Grant Thornton – Informing the Risk 
Assessment (circulated previously). 
 
The External Auditor (PB) confirmed that: 
 

 The report had been created jointly with NDC. 

 It covered accounting estimates in greater detail with more emphasis on 
management responses and best practice. 

 It had been presented to the Committee to enable the inclusion of any 
addition comments provided by the Members and also to seek formal, 
minuted agreement of the report. 

 
RESOLVED that the Informing the Audit Risk Report be noted. 
 

13.   ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE COMMITTEE'S EFFECTIVENESS 
 

The Head of Resources confirmed that 
 

 The paper questionnaire had been replaced with an online survey which could 
be used each year. 

 Not all of the Committee Members had completed the survey. 

 The responses would be used to identify training need. 

 Details of any appropriate training course would be circulated to the Members. 
 
Councillor Bushell was not happy that he could not see the responses of the other 
Committee Members in the report.   
 

RESOLVED: 
 

Page 12

Agenda Item 1



 
Governance Committee - 8 June 2021 

 
 

 
7 

 

a) That the full appendices of response comments be brought back to 
the next Committee Meeting for further consideration. 

 
b) That the report be noted. 

 

14.   LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION'S MODEL CODE OF 
CONDUCT 
 

The Committee considered the report of the Monitoring Officer as to the Local 
Government Association’s Model Code of Conduct (circulated previously). 
 
The Monitoring Officer advised that: 
 

 The Model Code provided a template for all Councils to use and amend as 
required. 

 The aim was to achieve a standard format for the Code of Conduct across all 
Councils. The new Code was not a major departure from the Authority’s 
existing Code of Conduct. 

 If the code was breached it would usually be a matter for the Monitoring 
Officer, although the Constitution did allow for any cases to be presented to 
the Governance Committee. 

 
RECOMMENDED that the Model Code of Conduct proceed to Full 
Council for consideration.  
 

15.   PROCEDURE FOR THE CONDUCT OF INVESTIGATIONS 
 

The Committee considered the Procedure for the Conduct of Investigations report 
(as per the Anti-Fraud, Corruption and Bribery Policy and Strategy) by the Monitoring 
Officer (circulated previously). 
 
The Committee were advised that: 
 

 The report sought to address two recommendations made in the NDDC Fraud 
and Bribery Audit Final Report (2018/2019) which had not been fully 
addressed: 

o Recommendation 4 of the report: that documented procedures should 
be compiled. 

o Recommendation 5: that periodic reports should be produced for 
Senior Management and Members. 

 Any fraudulent activity identified would be notified to the police by the Chief 
Executive or Monitoring Officer. 

 
RESOLVED that  
 
a) The procedural document for the investigation of suspected 

fraudulent occurrences be approved, as set out in Appendix A, and 

Page 13

Agenda Item 1



 
Governance Committee - 8 June 2021 

 
 

 
8 

 

b) That an additional paragraph entitled “Periodic reporting of 
irregularities to Senior Management and Members” be added to the 
AFCBPS as set out in Appendix B. 

 

16.   ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING POLICY 
 

The Committee considered the Anti-Money Laundering Policy by the Head of 
Resources (circulated previously).  
 
The Head of Resources advised the Committee that the update to the policy was 
found on section 2.1 (highlighted in red) 
 

RECOMMENDED that the Anti-Money Laundering Policy be noted and 
proceed to Council for consideration. 
 

17.   WHISTLE-BLOWING POLICY 
 

The Committee considered the Whistle-Blowing Policy by the Head of Resources 
(circulated previously).  
 
The Head of Resources advised the Committee that the updates to the policy were 
found on page 153 of the agenda (highlighted in red). These were the help-line 
website address and contact details. 
 

RECOMMENDED that the Whistle-Blowing Policy be noted and 
proceed to Council for consideration. 
 

18.   ANTI-FRAUD, BRIBERY AND CORRUPTION POLICY 
 

The Committee considered the Anti-Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy by the 
Head of Resources and the DAP (circulated previously).  
 
The Head of Resources advised the Committee that the updates to the policy were 
required following the review of the existing policy. There had been two 
recommended strategies following that review. These were the updated reporting 
mechanism and an explanation of the policy and how it covered the Authority and its 
partners. 
 

RECOMMENDED that the Anti-Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy be 
noted and proceed to Council for consideration. 
 

19.   COUNTER FRAUD STRATEGY AND RESPONSE PLAN 
 

The Committee considered the Counter Fraud Strategy and Response Plan by the 
Head of Resources and the DAP (circulated previously).  
 
The Head of Resources advised the Committee that; 
 

Page 14

Agenda Item 1



 
Governance Committee - 8 June 2021 

 
 

 
9 

 

 The Counter Fraud Strategy and Response Plan complemented the Anti-
Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy. 

 The Authority’s commitments were set out within the plan along with the 
proposed measures. 

 
The Internal Auditor (PM) advised that the next stage would be for the Auditors to 
work alongside the Head of Resources to set targeted reviews for 2022-2023. 
 

RESOLVED that the Counter Fraud Strategy and Response Plan be 
noted. 

 

20.   COMPENSATION PAYMENTS MADE UNDER DELEGATED 
POWERS 
 

The Committee considered a report by the Customer and Corporate 
Communications Manager (circulated previously) in relation to Compensation 
Payments Made under Delegated Powers. 
 
The Chief Executive advised the Committee of the following in relation to the report: 
 

 A total of £595.08 had been paid out to nine customers.  Eight were in relation 
to Operational Services and one for Housing Benefit. 

 The Housing Benefit compensation payment was for £300 (over 50% of the 
total) following an ombudsman complaint where it was deemed that incorrect 
advice had been given to a customer. 

 
The Chief Executive confirmed that this was an annual report as there were only a 
few compensation payments made. Details of complaints were covered by the AGS. 
 

RESOLVED that the Compensation Payments Made under Delegated 
Powers report be noted. 
 

21.   AUDIT RECOMMENDATION TRACKER 
 

The Committee considered the Audit Recommendation Tracker report by the Chief 
Executive in respect of actions taken to address internal and external audit 
recommendations (circulated previously).  
 
The Committee noted the following updates: 
 

 13 recommendations had been included in table B  (recommendations 
completed since the last meeting of the Governance Committee)  

 Table C detailed 8 recommendations for which time extensions were being 
requested. The Tracker had been updated with a more comprehensive set 
of notes. 

 There were a few recommendations with zero, or low percentage complete 
figures.  It was noted that these were low priority recommendations which 
would be followed up as part of a further DAP audit. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 1



 
Governance Committee - 8 June 2021 

 
 

 
10 

 

 
Councillor Walker passed on her congratulations to the SMT and staff for managing 
to reduce the list of recommendations requiring extensions considering the demands 
on the Authority over the past 18 months. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 
(a) that the time extensions requested in the Audit 

Recommendation Tracker be approved; and 
 

(b) that the Audit Recommendation Tracker be noted. 
 

 

22.   WORK PROGRAMME 2021-22 
 

The Committee considered the work programme for 2021/22 (circulated previously). 
 
 RESOLVED that the work programme for 2021/22 be noted. 
 
 
Chair 
The meeting ended at 8.45 pm 
 
NOTE: These minutes will be confirmed as a correct record at the next meeting of 
the Committee. 
 

Page 16

Agenda Item 1



 

Governance Committee - 20 October 2021 
 

1 
 

NORTH DEVON COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of Governance Committee held at Crematorium Meeting Room 
- North Devon Crematorium on Wednesday, 20th October, 2021 at 6.30 pm 
 
PRESENT: Members: 

 
 Councillor Roome (Chair) 

 
 Councillors Bushell, Henderson, Phillips, Topps, Turton and Walker 

 
 Officers: 

 
 Chief Executive, Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive, 

Solicitor and Data Protection Officer and Head of Governance 
 

   

24.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

Apologies were received from Councillors Campbell and Luggar. 
 

25.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS. 
 

There were no declarations of interest declared. 
 

26.   ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2020/21 
 

The Committee considered a report by the Senior Solicitor and Monitoring Officer 
regarding the Annual Governance Statement 2020/21 (circulated previously). 
 
The Head of Governance advised the Committee: 
 

 The Devon Audit Partnership (DAP) had given an opinion of Reasonable 
Assurance. 

 A series of recommendations had been presented to the Governance 
Committee which included items around Member Training and Code of 
Conduct, a review of the Corporate Plan Priorities and an update to the 
procurement strategy. 

 
In response to questions from the Committee, the Head of Governance confirmed 
that: 
 

 The Corporate Plan was being examined in detail with the Solicitor and Data 
Protection Officer and  

 The Corporate and Community Services team were reviewing the community 
engagement strategy. 

 
The Internal Auditor explained that their role included the provision of an annual 
assurance report which referenced a number of external, independent bodies, such 

Page 17

Agenda Item 1
Appendix A



 
Governance Committee - 20 October 2021 
 

 

 
2 

 

as the ombudsman. Their opinion agreed with the overall picture presented by the 
Accounts. 
 
In response to questions from the Committee, the Director of Resources and Deputy 
Chief Executive advised that: 
 

 The DAP had audited the AGS and considered good practice at neighbouring 
Local Authorities and had incorporated this where applicable. 

 The Member Training programme was being reviewed. The training 
programme included a refresher for Governance, equality and diversity 
refresher, along with further training on the roles of Members 

 
RESOLVED that the Annual Governance Statement 2020/21 be noted 
and proceed to Council for consideration. 
 

27.   STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2020/2021 
 

The Committee considered a report by the Director of Resources and Deputy Chief 
Executive regarding the Statement of Accounts 2020/21 (circulated previously). 
 
The Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive highlighted the following 
points for the Committee: 
 

 The draft accounts would usually be signed off by the 31st of July each year, 
however this had been extended to the 30th September. The delay to this 
October meeting had been due to the Governance Committee not meeting on 
the 27th September 2021 as planned 

 An Unqualified opinion had been issued. 

 A previous forecast at quarter 3 of a net surplus of £28k had now been 
increased due to additional funds such as income from planning, increased 
rental income on Butcher’s Row, reduced spend on temporary 
accommodation and accompanying reductions in costs across the Authority. 

 £1.2m General fund reserve, and £16.3m earmarked reserves were achieved. 

 The earmarked reserves were artificially higher in 2020/2021 due to timing 
differences in the accounting treatment of Covid business rate relief from 
Central Government. 

 The Authority was in a strong financial position for 2021/2022 year. 

 The net worth on the balance sheet had shown a net decrease on 2019/20 
due to an increase in the valuation of the long term assets, including the value 
of the new leisure centre build and an increase in the net liability of the 
pension fund. 

 The deficit in the Pension fund was offset by a pension reserve and would be 
made good by the employees’ contributions over their employment period. 
The value of this fund was reassessed every three years. 

 The final opinion on the accounts was due from the Auditors next week (w/c 
25th October 2021). 

 There would be a slight change to the wording on the material uncertainty 
disclosure due to the valuation and replacement costs of assets. The increase 

Page 18

Agenda Item 1
Appendix A



 
Governance Committee - 20 October 2021 
 

 

 
3 

 

in rebuild costs were due to the prices of building materials. A disclosure note 
had been added to the accounts in explanation 

 
In response to questions from the Committee, the Director of Resources and Deputy 
Chief Executive advised that: 
 

 Any cash balances held were protected as set out in the Treasury 
Management Strategy. Investments were held across a number of institutions 
to reduce risk. 

 The build of the Leisure Centre was covered by a fixed cost construction 
contract - reducing financial risk to the Authority. 

 
The Chair added that the general fund reserve balance for a District Council should 
be between 5% and 10%. NDC had achieved 9.1%. He commended the Chief 
Executive, Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive and the staff for their 
efforts in delivering the services within budget. 
 

RECOMMENDED that the Statement of Accounts 2020/21 be 
approved and proceed to Council for consideration. 
 

28.   EXTERNAL AUDIT - AUDIT FINDINGS REPORT 
 

The Committee considered a report by Grant Thornton regarding the External Audit 
– Audit Findings report (circulated previously). 
 
The External Auditor (PB) confirmed: 
 

 The date for the signing off of the accounts was set two months’ earlier 
than previously. The Auditors knew this would present a challenge. 

 A subset with the greatest chance of completion were chosen. NDC was 
part of that selection. 

 The cooperation between the Authority and the Auditors had been good. 

 There were no material errors. 

 Main issue had been material uncertainties - such as the pension liability 
and the asset valuations. Management had been challenged on those and 
it had been agreed that no changes were required to the accounts. 

 They were unable to issue the opinion until the Devon Pension Fund audit 
statement had been received. This was expected early next week (w/c 25th 
Oct 2021). Once this was received they would be able to sign off the 
assurance. The accounts would be signed-off by 31st October. 

 NDC were not alone in not yet having the accounts signed-off. As only 9% 
of Authorities had achieved this by the 30th September deadline. 

 The accounts would be signed off within the threshold in terms of risks. 
The Auditor had been impressed with the responses from both the officers 
and valuer. 

 
 
The Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive advised that the one 
recommendation within the audit had been reporting about projects such as the 

Page 19

Agenda Item 1
Appendix A



 
Governance Committee - 20 October 2021 
 

 

 
4 

 

regeneration of High Streets and the transparency/updates of projects. Management 
had accepted these and it was noted that external experts had been involved in 
projects where the professional expertise was unavailable in-house. Such external 
professionals were assessed based on their expertise, price, and results from 
previous contracts.  
 

RESOLVED that the External Audit - Audit Findings Report be noted. 
 

29.   LETTER OF REPRESENTATION 
 

The Committee considered the Letter of Representation, presented by the Director of 
Resources and Deputy Chief Executive (circulated previously). 
 
The Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive explained that the Letter of 
Representation formally outlined to the External Auditors, the governance 
arrangements in place and the Authority’s responsibilities on the financial statements 
presented. The Letter was presented to the Committee in advance of the Full 
Council meeting which would take place following this meeting. The Letter was 
required as part of the final process for the approval of the Statement of Accounts for 
2020/21 
 
 

RECOMMENDED that the Letter of Representation be approved by 
Full Council. 

 
Chair 
The meeting ended at 7.16 pm 
 
NOTE: These minutes will be confirmed as a correct record at the next meeting of 
the Committee. 
 

Page 20

Agenda Item 1
Appendix A



North Devon Council Governance Committee 

Date:  Sept 2021 

Half Yearly Report of the Chair of Governance Committee 

Two Governance Committee meetings have taken place (in March and June 2021). 

The Audit Committee resolved in May 2014 that the Chair of the Governance Committee 
would report half yearly to Council in March and September to highlight key issues that 
have arisen in the previous period. 

The last report was presented in March 2021.  

 

Review of the Committee’s Terms of Reference 

In March the Monitoring Officer presented the annual report to the Committee and 

confirmed that the terms had not changed although there had been a suggestion from 

the Auditors to include some additional information to the Terms of Reference.  The 

Committee agreed to review the terms at a future meeting. 

 

Annual Review of the Committee’s Effectiveness 

As only three responses had been received it was agreed at the March Committee that 

an online survey would be created which would be easier for inline completion. 

In June it was confirmed that an online form had been issued, but not all the Members 

had completed this within the allotted time.  The Committee agreed to bring the item 

back again at a later date with a more detailed report. 

 

Internal Audit Report – Leisure Centre Project 

The Committee considered a report by Devon Audit Partnership, and an update from 

the Contracts Delivery Manager. 

The Committee were advised: 

 The roles/responsibility of the internal NDC officers on the Project Team had 

been defined in greater detail and presented to the Strategy and Resources 

Committee. 

 The Risk Register review process had been updated in line with the report 

recommendation. A Risk Register Review had been added as a standing item to 

the agendas for the monthly project meetings. 

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



 Opportunity Risk had now been added to the registers and to those of the 

partners, eg Speller Metcalfe, Parkwood etc. The partners’ Risk Registers would 

be shared with the Authority if required, with the removal of any commercially 

sensitive confidential information. 

 The Communications Strategy had been updated, with more frequent Social 

Media and website activity; to promote the benefits of the project to the local 

community and stakeholders.  

 Progress reports would be provided to the Strategy and Resources Committee 

on a quarterly basis. 

 

Business Continuity 

In June 2021, the Committee considered a report by the DAP and were advised that: 

 This was an update of the 2019 report within which Business Continuity had 

been considered a red risk. The report set the focus and direction for the 

Authority going forward. 

 Work had been completed with the Service Manager (Public Protection) to 

identify the six priorities within the report which would then be completed within 

the next five months. 

 The Authority had programmed the outstanding works into an action plan, with a 

target completion date of October 2021 for the first phase. 

 

Recommendations to update the Member Code of Conduct 

In June 2021 the Monitoring Officer presented the Local Government Association’s Model 

Code of Conduct to the Committee. The Committee recommended it for approval by Full 

Council. 

Procedure for the Conduct of Investigations 

In June 2021 the Monitoring Officer presented the report to the Committee. The 

Committee resolved that the document be approved and that an additional paragraph 

regarding the Periodic reporting of irregularities to Senior Management and Members be 

added. 

Page 22

Agenda Item 6



Anti Money-Laundering Policy, 

Whistle-Blowing Policy,  

Anti-Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy, 

Counter-fraud Strategy and response Plan 

In June 2021 the Committee recommended the above policies for approval by Full 

Council. 

 

Compensation Payments Made Under Delegated Powers 

In June 2021 the Committee was advised that there had been nine compensation 

payments. These totalled £595.08. Eight had been in relation to Operational Services, 

and one for Housing Benefit. The Housing Benefit compensation had been for £300 (over 

50% of the total) following an ombudsman complaint where it was deemed that incorrect 

advice had been given to a customer. 

 

Audit Recommendation Tracker 

The Committee was advised in March that: 

 Five recommendations had been included in table B (recommendations completed 
since the last meeting of the Governance Committee). 

 Table C detailed one recommendation for which a time extension to 31st March 
2021 was being requested. 

 There were no outstanding recommendations (Table D). 

 There were three recommendations in Table E (Annual Governance Statement). 
The report for AGS 19/20 02 would require time to enable it to be considered by 
the CORGI group 

 
The Committee was advised in June that: 

 13 recommendations had been completed since the March 2020 meeting. 

 Table C detailed 8 recommendations for which time extensions were being 
requested.  

 There were a few recommendations with zero, or low percentage complete figures. 
It was noted that these were low priority recommendations which would be 
followed up as part of a further DAP audit. 

 
 

Corporate Risk Register 

The Corporate Risk Register was presented to the Committee in March 2021 

The Chief Executive advised the Committee that the report circulated had been received 

by the CORGI group. A couple of the risks had increased due to the pandemic. 

Page 23

Agenda Item 6



 

External and Internal Audit 

 

Internal Audit Plan Report 2021/22 

The Committee was advised by DAP of the following in relation to the Internal Audit Plan 

Report: 

 The Internal Audit Plan Report 2021-22 had been created as per the requirement 
within the Internal Audit Charter and Strategy. It was an indicative plan of the 
proposals for the year ahead which remained flexible. This was appropriate that 
the plan could change and adapt to risks. 

 Over 25% of the ‘Audit Plan Days’ had covered Resources as the core audits (key 
financial systems) were covered in that team.  

 Discussions had taken place with the Heads of Service to develop the plan. 
Consequently changes had taken place in relation to the works and processes 
audited. 

 The additional Counter-Fraud services of the Auditors were recommended. 
Governance Committee - 9 March 2021 4  

 The Internal Audit plan would include the following additional audits to be added 
for 2022/23 to 2024/25. These were ‘Other Grants’, Insurance, and Harbour 
Authority. 

 Safeguarding Children and Vulnerable Adults had been added to the audits for 
Environment Health and Housing. 

 There were no audits for 2021/22 for Operational Services as, on balance, they 
had not provided any high risks.  

 The framework of the audits were set out in appendices 1-4 of the plan 
 

Internal Audit Charter Strategy 2021/22 

In March the Committee was advised by DAP of the following in relation to the Internal 

Audit Charter Strategy: 

 It set out the work and reports for the coming year. 

 Remained the same as 2020-21 with no change to the public sector charter. 
 
 

Internal Audit Progress Report 2021/22 

The Committee was advised by DAP of the following in relation to the Internal Audit Plan 

Report: 

In March the Committee was advised: 

 An overall level of Reasonable Assurance was expected. Of the seven audits 
delivered in 2020/21, all but one was ‘Reasonable’. The other had an opinion of 
Substantial. 

Page 24

Agenda Item 6



 Of the Audits carried out so far, the Safe Staff Operations during the Covid-19 
Emergency had achieved ‘Reasonable (in draft) assurance’. 

 The Assurance Map (appendix 2) provided a summary of the benefit of assurance 
mapping, along with the Audit Plan for 2020-21. 

 The Map highlighted suggested areas of weakness in red/amber. 

 The Plan was progressing well, during the business time of the financial year, with 
the field work on Benefits and Car Parking ongoing.  

 An update on Business Continuity and Cyber Security could be provided at a future 
meeting. 

 
 

Internal Audit Annual Report 

In June the Committee were presented with the Annual Report. They were advised:  

 The opinion of Internal Audit was that of “Reasonable Assurance”.  

 To support the overall opinion of “Reasonable Assurance” they provided a 

Reasonable assurance rating on 9 of the 14 audits (with 2 substantial and 3 

limited opinions).  

 The statement of opinion was underpinned by: 

o Internal Control Framework 

o Risk Management 

o Governance Arrangements 

o And Performance Management  

 The ICT Cyber Security audit crossed all areas of the Authority’s work.  

 92% of the audits in the revised plan for the year had been delivered. The 

remaining audits had either been cancelled, deferred by the client, or rolled over 

into 2021/22.  

 The reports on some audits had been delayed due to issues presented by staff 

working remotely.  

 In relation to other Authorities, it was difficult to compare performance, but the 

DAP was satisfied that the audits were ‘on track’ and they were generally happy 

with progress. 

 

Internal Audit – Cyber Security – Malware and Ransomware 

In June 2021 the Committee considered the Internal Audit Cyber Security, Malware and 

Ransomware Report by the DAP.  Internal Audit advised that the Team from One West 

had delivered the report in partnership with the DAP.  

 

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



Internal Audit Parking Operations Report 

In June 2021 the Committee were advised that: 
 

 The review had included a review of the Health and Safety measures in place to 
protect staff during the pandemic. The overall systems in place had been found to 
be effective.  

 There had been a possible lack of continuity due to staffing changes within the 
team. 

 The review had focussed on penalty notices and collection rates.  

 Regular reports had now been requested from the contractor which would assist 
with the monitoring of the systems but it was felt that a suite of management reports 
would need to be developed.  

 There was now a new online system for customers to use to buy and renew 
permits. Any members of the public who had difficulty with the system could call 
customer services, or the parking team, for assistance. 

 A regular report would be provided in relation to the Fixed Penalty Notices: number 
issues, recovery rates, age of debts, etc. 

 
 

 

External Audit Progress Report and Sector Update 

The External Auditor advised of the following in relation to the External Audit Progress 

Report and Sector Update in March 2021:  

 The outstanding work from 2019/20 had been on the Housing Benefit subsidy. 

The annual subsidy claim had now been signed off on 27th January 2021. It had 

been certified without amendment. Some errors had been identified and 

adjustments made. These were not significant nor of concern. The value of the 

adjustment had been very small.  

 The 2019/20 audit had now been completed.  

 The delivery of the 2020/21 had been a challenge due to the pandemic. This, and 

the delay to the Housing Benefit certification work had an impact on delivery times. 

It was expected that the audit plan would be complete by the end of March 2021 

and would be formally presented at the next Governance Committee.  

 The Value for Money work would be focussed on new criteria and risk. The three 

main changes were:  

o A new set of key criteria  

o More extensive reporting, and  

o The replacement of binary (qualified/unqualified) approach of VfM 

conclusions.  

 Once the plan was issued they would be able to make a start on the draft accounts. 

 The Auditors were confident that the September 2021 deadline would be met. 

 

Page 26

Agenda Item 6



External Audit – Audit Plan 

The External Auditor advised of the following in June 2021:  

 The plan had been completed slightly later than planned although the planning had 
now been completed along with the interim works. 

 The Audits had determined that the materiality to be £1.1m for the Authority which 
equated to 2% of the prior year’s gross expenditure for the year. 

 Focus was to be made on the areas of greatest risk. These were the same as the 
previous year with one exception – that was the New payroll system / transfer of 
data. 

 Following a new Code of Audit Practice from the National Audit Office (NAO) there 
were three main changes to the Value for Money (VfM) work:  

o A new set of criteria  
o More extensive reporting  
o The replacement of the binary (qualified/unqualified) approach to the VfM 

conclusions.  

 From 2022/2023 onwards there would be an increase in uncertainty as gaps in 
funding were experienced. 

 The proposed fee for the Audit had increased by £15,500. This included £9,000 
for the additional works required on the VfM under the new NAO code, and £6,500 
due to the revised audit standards required. 

 
 
 

External Audit – Informing the Risk Assessment 

In June the Committee were presented with this report. The Auditor confirmed the 
following: 
 

 The report had been created jointly with NDC.  

 It covered accounting estimates in greater detail with more emphasis on 
management responses and best practice. 

 It had been presented to the Committee to enable the inclusion of any addition 
comments provided by the Members and also to seek formal, minuted agreement 
of the report. 

 

Page 27

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



 

North Devon Council 

Report Date:  16 November 2021 

Topic:  Appointment of External Auditors from 2023-24 

Report by: Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 The provision of external audit in Local Government has undergone a 
number of fundamental changes in recent years, although limited to 
delivery arrangements as opposed to technical change of approach. 

1.2 External audit in Local Government was previously a responsibility of the 
Audit Commission, which was originally set up in 1983 for this purpose.  
The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 abolished the Audit 
Commission as at 31 March 2015 and its functions are now delivered via 
Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA), National Audit Office (NAO), 
Financial Reporting Council and the Cabinet Office. 

1.3 The arrangements for the future provision of external audit were also laid 
out in the 2014 Act part of which transferred the responsibility for 
appointing external audit back to the sector itself.  The current contracts 
for external audit are being overseen by PSAA and run through to the 
conclusion of the 2022-23 audits. 

1.4 This report considers what options are available to North Devon Council 
for the future provision on external audit services commencing with the 
2023-24 audit. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1. It is recommended to Full Council that North Devon Council opts into the 

national scheme for auditor appointments from April 2023 and formally 

accepts the proposal from Public Sector Audit Appointments. 

 

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1. There is a legal requirement to have an external audit and the legislation 

changed allowing a variety of options available to procure and select external 

audit firms.  Whilst such freedoms are generally welcomed it is recognised 

that in this tightly regulated area a source of national procurement by a 

provider appointed by the Secretary of State and supported by the Local 

Government Association (LGA) offers a beneficial and more effective process 

than North Devon Council undertaking alone.    

3.2. The provision of External Audit is covered by the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014 and the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 

Page 29

Agenda Item 7



 
2015.  Under the legislation North Devon Council has to appoint its external 

auditor for the 2023-24 financial year before the end of December 2022. 

 

 

4. REPORT 

4.1. North Devon Council’s current external auditor is Grant Thornton UK LLP 

(GT) and this arrangement has been in place since 2018-19 when this 

Council opted into the current national scheme for auditor appointments for 

the five-year period commencing in April 2018; alongside 98% of eligible 

bodies who chose to opt in. 

4.2. Grant Thornton UK LLP (GT) will remain North Devon Council’s External 
Auditors until the conclusion of the 2022-23 audit and in order to comply with 
legislation North Devon Council must appoint an external auditor for the audit 
of the accounts for 2023-24 before the end of 2022 

 

4.3. The Act allows individual authorities to procure and appoint its own External 
Auditors independently.  However, operating under this arrangement requires 
the setting up of independent auditor panels.   

 

4.4. The Secretary of State has again specified Public Sector Audit Appointments 
(PSAA) as the appointing person for principal local government bodies, which 
gives them the role of appointing local auditors under a national scheme.  
What this means is that they will be able to procure external audit services at 
a national level for all those authorities who wish to opt into the scheme 
thereby removing the onus on individual authorities to act alone.   

 

4.5. Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) previously secured the necessary 
arrangements under the legislation and are supported by the Local 
Government Association (LGA).   They will appoint auditors for a period of 5 
years with effect from 1 April 2023.  Appendix A to the report sets out the 
role and what Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) will deliver as the 
appointed person. 

 

4.6. The experience from the last four years together with discussions with other 
Councils across Devon have led to a general consensus that opting in to the 
national scheme is far more practical and cost effective than attempting to set 
up individual or joint / partnership arrangements with groups of councils.  

 

4.7. North Devon Council has received the official offer to opt into the scheme 
provided by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) and they require 
confirmation of whether North Devon Council wants to by 11 March 
2022.  In order to opt into the scheme the legislation requires approval of Full 
Council, of which the next meeting is being held on 24 November. 

 

Page 30

Agenda Item 7



 
 

5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

5.1. The current cost of the external audit service provided by Grant Thornton UK 

LLP (GT) for 2020-21 was £57,999 (2019-20 was £50,599).  The fees back in 

2017-18 were £60,788; the final year before the current 5-year contracts 

were put in place. 

5.2. The service with effect from 1 April 2023 will be subject to a national 
procurement exercise and therefore the cost may differ to that currently 
budgeted for at present.  However, it is anticipated that opting into a national 
scheme could deliver financial benefits notwithstanding the savings made by 
not having to implement independent audit panels and the costs of procuring 
the services individually ourselves.  

 

6. EQUALITIES ASSESSMENT 

6.1. There are not any equalities implications anticipated as a result of this report.   

 

7. CONSTITUTIONAL CONTEXT 

7.1. Article 4.5 of Part 2  

 

8. STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

8.1. This report contains no confidential information or exempt information under 

the provisions of Schedule 12A of 1972 Act. 

 

9. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

9.1. The background papers are available for inspection and kept by the author of 

the report. 

 

10. STATEMENT OF INTERNAL ADVICE 

10.1. The author (below) confirms that advice has been taken from all 

appropriate Councillors and Officers:  

 

Jon Triggs, Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive 

 

 

Page 31

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ 

 

 
22 September 2021 

 
To:       Mr Miles, Chief Executive 
       North Devon District Council 
 
 
Copied to: Mr Triggs, S151 Officer 

                 Mr Roome, Chair of Audit Committee or equivilent 

 

Dear Mr Miles, 

Invitation to opt into the national scheme for auditor appointments from April 2023 
 

I want to ensure that you are aware the external auditor for the audit of your accounts for 

2023/24 has to be appointed before the end of December 2022. That may seem a long way 

away but, as your organisation has a choice about how to make that appointment, your 

decision-making process needs to begin soon. 

We are pleased that the Secretary of State has confirmed PSAA in the role of the appointing 

person for eligible principal bodies for the period commencing April 2023. Joining PSAA’s 

national scheme for auditor appointments is one of the choices available to your organisation.  

In June 2021 we issued a draft prospectus and invited your views and comments on our early 

thinking on the development of the national scheme for the next period. Feedback from the 

sector has been extremely helpful and has enabled us to refine our proposals which are now 

set out in the scheme prospectus and our procurement strategy. Both documents can be 

downloaded from our website which also contains a range of useful information that you may 

find helpful.  

The national scheme timetable for appointing auditors from 2023/24 means we now need to 

issue a formal invitation to you to opt into these arrangements. In order to meet the 

requirements of the relevant regulations, we also attach a form of acceptance of our invitation 

which you must use if your organisation decides to join the national scheme. We have 

specified the five consecutive financial years beginning 1 April 2023 as the compulsory 

appointing period for the purposes of the regulations which govern the national scheme. 

Given the very challenging local audit market, we believe that eligible bodies will be best 

served by opting to join the scheme and have attached a short summary of why we believe 

that is the best solution both for individual bodies and the sector as a whole. 

I would like to highlight three matters to you: 

1. if you opt to join the national scheme, we need to receive your formal acceptance of this 

invitation by Friday 11 March 2022;  

Page 33

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

https://www.psaa.co.uk/about-us/appointing-person-information/appointing-period-2023-24-2027-28/prospectus-2023-and-beyond/
https://www.psaa.co.uk/about-us/appointing-person-information/appointing-period-2023-24-2027-28/procurement-strategy/


2. the relevant regulations require that, except for a body that is a corporation sole (e.g. a 

police and crime commissioner), the decision to accept our invitation and to opt in must 

be made by the members of the authority meeting as a whole e.g. Full Council or 

equivalent. We appreciate this will need to be built into your decision-making timetable. 

We have deliberately set a generous timescale for bodies to make opt in decisions (24 

weeks compared to the statutory minimum of 8 weeks) to ensure that all eligible bodies 

have sufficient time to comply with this requirement; and 

3. if you decide not to accept the invitation to opt in by the closing date, you may 

subsequently make a request to opt in, but only after 1 April 2023. We are required to 

consider such requests and agree to them unless there are reasonable grounds for their 

refusal. PSAA must consider a request as the appointing person in accordance with the 

Regulations. The Regulations allow us to recover our reasonable costs for making 

arrangements to appoint a local auditor in these circumstances, for example if we need 

to embark on a further procurement or enter into further discussions with our contracted 

firms. 

If you have any other questions not covered by our information, do not hesitate to contact us 

by email at ap2@psaa.co.uk. We also publish answers to frequently asked questions on our 

website. 

If you would like to discuss a particular issue with us, please send an email also to 

ap2@psaa.co.uk, and we will respond to you.  

 

Yours sincerely 

Tony Crawley 

Chief Executive 

 

Encl: Summary of the national scheme 

 

Page 34

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

mailto:ap2@psaa.co.uk
https://www.psaa.co.uk/contact-us/frequently-asked-questions/
https://www.psaa.co.uk/contact-us/frequently-asked-questions/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-transition/appointing-person/
mailto:ap2@psaa.co.uk


 

 

Why accepting the national scheme opt-in invitation is the best solution 

Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited (PSAA) 

We are a not-for-profit, independent company limited by guarantee incorporated by the Local 

Government Association in August 2014.  

We have the support of the LGA, which in 2014 worked to secure the option for principal local 

government and police bodies to appoint auditors through a dedicated sector-led national 

body.  

We have the support of Government; MHCLG’s Spring statement confirmed our appointment 

because of our “strong technical expertise and the proactive work they have done to help to 

identify improvements that can be made to the process”. 

We are an active member of the new Local Audit Liaison Committee, chaired by MHCLG and 

attended by key local audit stakeholders, enabling us to feed in body and audit perspectives 

to decisions about changes to the local audit framework, and the need to address timeliness 

through actions across the system. 

We conduct research to raise awareness of local audit issues, and work with MHCLG and 

other stakeholders to enable changes arising from Sir Tony Redmond’s review, such as more 

flexible fee setting and a timelier basis to set scale fees.  

We have established an advisory panel, which meets three times per year. Its membership is 

drawn from relevant representative groups of local government and police bodies, to act as a 

sounding board for our scheme and to enable us to hear your views on the design and 

operation of the scheme.  

The national scheme for appointing local auditors 

In July 2016, the Secretary of State specified PSAA as an appointing person for principal local 

government and police bodies for audits from 2018/19, under the provisions of the Local Audit 

and Accountability Act 2014 and the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015. Acting 

in accordance with this role PSAA is responsible for appointing an auditor and setting scales 

of fees for relevant principal authorities that have chosen to opt into its national scheme. 98% 

of eligible bodies made the choice to opt-in for the five-year period commencing in April 2018. 

We will appoint an auditor for all opted-in bodies for each of the five financial years beginning 

from 1 April 2023.  

We aim for all opted-in bodies to receive an audit service of the required quality at a realistic 

market price and to support the drive towards a long term competitive and more sustainable 

market for local audit. The focus of our quality assessment will include resourcing capacity 

and capability including sector knowledge, and client relationship management and 

communication. 

What the appointing person scheme from 2023 will offer 

We believe that a sector-led, collaborative, national scheme stands out as the best option for 

all eligible bodies, offering the best value for money and assuring the independence of the 

auditor appointment.  Page 35

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A



 

 

The national scheme from 2023 will build on the range of benefits already available for 

members: 

• transparent and independent auditor appointment via a third party; 

• the best opportunity to secure the appointment of a qualified, registered auditor;  

• appointment, if possible, of the same auditors to bodies involved in significant 

collaboration/joint working initiatives, if the parties believe that it will enhance efficiency;  

• on-going management of any independence issues which may arise; 

• access to a specialist PSAA team with significant experience of working within the context 

of the relevant regulations to appoint auditors, managing contracts with audit firms, and 

setting and determining audit fees;   

• a value for money offer based on minimising PSAA costs and distribution of any surpluses 

to scheme members - in 2019 we returned a total £3.5million to relevant bodies and more 

recently we announced a further distribution of £5.6m in August 2021; 

• collective efficiency savings for the sector through undertaking one major procurement as 

opposed to a multiplicity of smaller procurements;  

• avoids the necessity for local bodies to establish an auditor panel and undertake an auditor 

procurement, enabling time and resources to be deployed on other pressing priorities;  

• updates from PSAA to Section 151 officers and Audit Committee Chairs on a range of 

local audit related matters to inform and support effective auditor-audited body 

relationships; and 

• concerted efforts to work with other stakeholders to develop a more sustainable local audit 

market. 

We are committed to keep developing our scheme, taking into account feedback from scheme 

members, suppliers and other stakeholders, and learning from the collective post-2018 

experience. This work is ongoing, and we have taken a number of initiatives to improve the 

operation of the scheme for the benefit of all parties.  

Importantly we have listened to your feedback to our recent consultation, and our response is 

reflected in the scheme prospectus. 

 

Opting in 

The closing date for opting in is 11 March 2022. We have allowed more than the minimum 

eight-week notice period required, because the formal approval process for most eligible 

bodies is a decision made by the members of the authority meeting as a whole [Full Council 

or equivalent], except police and crime commissioners who are able to make their own 

decision.  

We will confirm receipt of all opt-in notices. A full list of eligible bodies that opt in will be 

published on our website. Once we have received an opt-in notice, we will write to you to 

request information on any joint working arrangements relevant to your auditor appointment, 

and any potential independence matters which may need to be taken into consideration when 

appointing your auditor. 

Page 36

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

https://www.psaa.co.uk/about-us/appointing-person-information/appointing-period-2023-24-2027-28/prospectus-2023-and-beyond/


 

 

Local Government Reorganisation 

We are aware that reorganisations in the local government areas of Cumbria, Somerset, and 

North Yorkshire were announced in July 2021. Subject to parliamentary approval shadow 

elections will take place in May 2022 for the new Councils to become established from 1 April 

2023. Newly established local government bodies have the right to opt into PSAA’s scheme 

under Regulation 10 of the Appointing Person Regulations 2015. These Regulations also set 

out that a local government body that ceases to exist is automatically removed from the 

scheme. 

If for any reason there is any uncertainty that reorganisations will take place or meet the 

current timetable, we would suggest that the current eligible bodies confirm their acceptance 

to opt in to avoid the requirement to have to make local arrangements should the 

reorganisation be delayed. 

Next Steps 

We expect to formally commence the procurement of audit services in early February 2022. 

At that time our procurement documentation will be available for opted-in bodies to view 

through our e-tendering platform. 

Our recent webinars to support our consultation proved to be popular, and we will be running 

a series of webinars covering specific areas of our work and our progress to prepare for the 

second appointing period. Details can be found on our website and in the scheme prospectus.

 

Page 37

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

https://www.psaa.co.uk/about-us/appointing-person-information/appointing-period-2023-24-2027-28/autumn-and-winter-webinars/
https://www.psaa.co.uk/about-us/appointing-person-information/appointing-period-2023-24-2027-28/prospectus-2023-and-beyond/


This page is intentionally left blank



Robert Hutchins 
Head of Audit Partnership 

Internal Audit 
 
Audit Progress Report 2021-22 
 
North Devon District Council 
Governance Committee 
 
November 2021 

 
 
 

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 8



 

1 

 

Introduction 

The Governance Committee, under its Terms of Reference contained in North Devon District Council’s 
Constitution, is required to consider the Chief Internal Auditor’s annual report, to review and approve the 
Internal Audit programme, and to monitor the progress and performance of Internal Audit. 
 
The Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2015 introduced the requirement that all 
Authorities carry out an annual review of the effectiveness of their internal audit system and incorporate the 
results of that review into their Annual Governance Statement (AGS), published with the annual Statement of 
Accounts. 
  
The Internal Audit plan for 2021-22 was presented and approved by the Governance Committee in March 
2021. The following report and appendices set out the background to audit service provision and provides a 
position statement on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control environment. 
 
The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require the Head of Internal Audit to provide an annual report 
providing an opinion that can be used by the organisation to inform its governance statement. This report 
contributes to that annual opinion. 
 
Expectations of the Governance Committee from this progress report 

Governance Committee members are requested to consider: 

 the assurance statement within this report. 

 the basis of our opinion and the completion of audit work against the plan. 

 the revised audit plan provided. 

 audit coverage and findings provided. 

 the overall performance and customer satisfaction on audit delivery. 

 
In review of the above the Governance Committee are required to consider the assurance provided 
alongside that of the Executive, Corporate Risk Management and external assurance including that of the 
External Auditor as part of the Governance Framework and satisfy themselves from this assurance that the 
internal control framework continues to be maintained. 

 

Robert Hutchins 
Head of Devon Audit Partnership 

Contents Page 

Introduction 1 

Opinion Statement 2 

Executive Summary Audit Results  2 

Value Added 3 

Audit Coverage & Progress Against 
Plan  

3 
 

Revision to the Audit Plan 3 

  

 Appendices  

1 – Summary of Audit Results 4 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

P
age 40

A
genda Item

 8



  

2 

 

Opinion Statement 

This opinion statement will support Members in their consideration for signing the 
Annual Governance Statement. 

Internal Audit assesses whether key, and other, controls are operating 
satisfactorily within audit reviews. An opinion on the adequacy of controls is 
provided to management as part of each audit report.   

All final audit reports include an action plan which identifies responsible 
officers, and target dates, to address control issues identified. 
Implementation of action plans is the responsibility of management but may 
be reviewed during subsequent audits or as part of a follow-up process. 

Directors and Senior Management are provided with details of Internal 
Audit’s opinion for each audit review to assist them with compilation of their 
individual annual governance assurance statements at year end.  

 
 

Executive Summary of Audit Results 

Core Financial Audits  

We provide a Substantial Assurance on Treasury Management, but a 
Limited Assurance opinion for Debt Management, with a significant 
increase in the amount of debt held over the four-year period. We 
reviewed management of some of the Government grants issued by 
NDC and confirm that these were managed and issued effectively.    

Risk Based Audit 

We provide a Limited Opinion related to Climate Change, and a 
Reasonable Assurance on Procurement. Both audits have 
highlighted the need for more focus on delivery of strategic 
objectives, such as a strategy to meet its commitment to become 
carbon neutral, and delivery of the Procurement Strategy.  

We also undertook a review of Governance in conjunction with the 
Councils own review as part of its creation of the Annual Governance 
Statement (AGS). We provide a Reasonable Assurance, with the 
recommendations included in the action plan for the AGS.   

Appendix 1 to this report provides more detail on the audits delivered 
since the last Committee meeting with the overall assurance opinion 
and recommendations. Where a “substantial assurance” or 
“reasonable assurance” of audit opinion has been provided we can 
confirm that, overall, sound controls are in place to mitigate exposure 
to risks identified; where an opinion of “limited assurance” has been 
provided then issues were identified during the audit process that 
required attention. We have provided a summary of key issues 
reported that are being addressed by management. We are content 
that management are appropriately addressing these issues. 

 

 

Substantial 
Assurance 

A sound system of governance, risk management and control exist 
across the organisation, with internal controls operating effectively and 
being consistently applied to support the achievement of strategic and 
operational objectives. 

Reasonable 
Assurance 

There are generally sound systems of governance, risk management 
and control in place across the organisation. Some issues, non-
compliance or scope for improvement were identified which may put at 
risk the achievement of some of the strategic and operational 
objectives. 

Limited 
Assurance 

Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were identified across 
the organisation. Improvement is required to the system of governance, 
risk management and control to effectively manage risks and ensure 
that strategic and operational objectives can be achieved. 

No 
Assurance 

Immediate action is required to address fundamental control gaps, 
weaknesses or issues of non-compliance identified across the 
organisation. The system of governance, risk management and control 
is inadequate to effectively manage risks to the achievement of 
strategic and operational objectives. 

Overall, based on work performed during 2021/22 and our experience 
from the current year progress and previous years’ audit, the Head of 
Internal Audit’s Opinion is of “Reasonable Assurance” on the 
adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control 

framework 

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 8



  

3 

 

 

Counter Fraud Work 

We met with the Senior Management Team on the 27 September to 
discuss taking forward the Counter Fraud Policy and Strategy with 
more focused training and focused fraud assessments. We have 
started to engage with Heads of Service by encouraging them to 
consider where fraud risk might lie, and how it should be tested.  

There have been no reported fraud issues in the year to date. 
Management is aware that they can refer any suspected issues to 
our counter fraud team. 

 

Risk Management 

We met with the CORGI (Corporate Risk Management Group) on 8 
September which was meeting to review the new Risk Management 
Framework and the Corporate Risk Register. We discussed good 
practice related to risk management and supported an exercise that 
considered the Corporate Risks related to the council’s Corporate 
Plan priorities. We have also suggested amendments to the Risk 
Management Framework to make it more concise.   

Value Added 
It is important that the internal audit service seeks to "add value" 
whenever it can. We consider internal audit activity has added value 
to the organisation and its stakeholders by: 

 Providing objective and relevant assurance. 

 Contributing to the effectiveness and efficiency of the 
governance, risk management and internal control processes. 

 Adjusting the audit plan when needed to provide real time 
assurance, such as on Safe staff operations during this 
emergency. 

 Comparing and contrasting controls across the different Devon 
Councils that we support.  

 

Audit Coverage and Performance Against Plan  

We have made good progress and are on track to deliver the 2021-
22 audit plan. Currently, we expect to complete the audit plan in full.   

Key performance indicators on progress against audit 
recommendations is monitored and managed by the Authority.  

Customer Satisfaction – satisfaction returns specific to NDDC 

have yet to be received this year and we will be placing a priority of 
getting more feedback. In general, survey returns for DAP score 98% 
satisfaction year to date.  

 

P
age 42

A
genda Item

 8



  

4 

 

Appendix 1 – Summary of audit reports and findings for 2021-22 

Risk Assessment Key Direction of Travel Assurance Key 
Spar – Local Authority Risk Register score Impact x Likelihood = Total & Level 
ANA - Audit Needs Assessment risk level as agreed with Client Senior Management 
Client Request – additional audit at request of Client Senior Management; no risk 
assessment information available 

Green – action plan agreed with client for delivery over an appropriate timescale. 
Amber – agreement of action plan delayed, or we are aware progress is hindered. 
Red – action plan not agreed, or we are aware progress on key risks is not being made. 
* report recently issued; assurance progress is of managers feedback at debrief meeting. 
 

 

Risk Area / Audit Entity 

Audit Report 

Assurance 
opinion 

Executive Summary / Residual Risk 
Summary of 

Recommendations 
High / Med / Low 

Direction 
of Travel 

Assurance 

Core Reviews 

Treasury Management Substantial 
Assurance 

The audit found a strong control framework with effective controls to mitigate 
the risks identified to enable us to provide a Substantial Assurance. As a 
result, we did not raise any recommendations.  

The requirement for officers to work from home due to Covid-19 has resulted 
in minor changes in the way the system works, but core controls continue to 
operate as required. The Council has current general fund reserves of £1.2m, 
(9.1% of net spending) which is within the figure suggested by Grant 
Thornton. The reserves are managed in accordance with the low-risk strategy 
endorsed by the Council. 

The Treasury Management function is administered daily by the Exchequer 
Manager, with oversight from the Head of Finance. There is an appropriate 
process and system controls to ensure that only officers with delegations can 
transfer monies to and from banks as per the Treasury Management 
Strategy. 

The overall Treasury Management strategy and approach are discussed and 
agreed with Members. In line with the CIPFA Code of Practice (the Code) the 
Head of Resources presents to Elected Members (via the Strategy and 
Resources Committee, the Policy Development Group and Full Council) 
three reports per annum. 

- - - 
 

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 8



  

5 

 

Risk Area / Audit Entity 

Audit Report 

Assurance 
opinion 

Executive Summary / Residual Risk 
Summary of 

Recommendations 
High / Med / Low 

Direction 
of Travel 

Assurance 

Debtors Limited 
Assurance 

We identify there are strong controls related to management of the debtor 
system, such as access and management of transactions.  However, 
analysis of debt owed to the council over the last four years indicates a 
significant increase in the amount of debt; from £560k in 2017/18, to £1.386m 
in 2020/21. This increase has been significant in the two years following 
2017/18 (prior to the C-19 emergency) with a 26% and 28% year on year 
increase in the financial value of debtor invoices raised. There is an increase 
of £826k of debt outstanding in three years, with debt between ‘1 year - 6 
years +’ in age increasing by £526k.  

A significant proportion of the debt over one year relates to housing deposits 
which have increased from £185k to £472k between March 2018 and March 
2021. In addition, there was a significant increase in other debt over one year 
in 2020/21 from £204k to £417k as council resource was diverted to focus on 
the C-19 emergency.  

The council needs to urgently prioritise debt recovery to prevent financial 
loss, as debt becomes harder to recover over time. It also needs to identify 
and communicate the increased specific risk related to Housing Deposits. 
Given the increase in debt, we provide a Limited Opinion. 

- 3 2 
 

Management of Covid-
19 grants (Small 
Business; and Retail, 
Hospitality and 
Leisure Grants) 

Reasonable 
Assurance 

NDC has successfully issued more than £45m grants over the period, using a 
systematic process to review eligibility and reduce risks of fraud and error. 
Staff from a range of service areas were initially drafted in to assist with the 
process. The requirement to support this activity has placed a great demand 
on council operations, and the individuals who were involved in this activity. 
The overall approach taken to the disbursement of these grants has enabled 
them to be processed quickly. Based on our work, and checks by the 
Council, indications are that the level of fraud in this area is low, although 
post payment checks continue. 

 

 

- 3 - 
 

P
age 44

A
genda Item

 8



  

6 

 

Risk Area / Audit Entity 

Audit Report 

Assurance 
opinion 

Executive Summary / Residual Risk 
Summary of 

Recommendations 
High / Med / Low 

Direction 
of Travel 

Assurance 

Risk Based Reviews 

Climate Change Limited 
Assurance 

The Council has made a clear commitment to support Climate Change action 
by its commitment to become carbon neutral by 2030. It has released a 
Corporate Priorities, Environmental Policy and Action Plan and is aware of 
opportunities to reduce the impact of carbon emissions. There is clear 
intention to meet and tackle the challenges of climate change, and outline 
governance arrangements are established and working to engage with and 
deliver local climate action objectives and actions.  

The pandemic has, as with many areas, hindered progress where senior 
officers, leadership and members have been focused on tackling these 
issues. During this time the Climate Action Team (CAT - subgroup of the 
Strategy and Resources Committee) has been meeting and considering 
intelligence reports, recommending priorities, and receiving monitoring 
information of some key activities. It is also clear that there is real interest in 
this group to get to grips with the challenges and make a difference where 
they have heavily supported the climate action week. Their wish to appoint a 
Sustainability and Climate Officer has recently come to fruition with a joint 
post (with Torridge District Council) being appointed to. It seems clear from 
our initial discussions that this will be a significant benefit to progress.  

Accepting that there is a clear outline governance framework to meet the 
overall objective, there are gaps in the framework and areas where 
effectiveness of process supporting progress are weak. We have highlighted 
positive arrangements and progress, together with challenges and ‘even 
better if’ opportunities in appendix A to the report.  

The priority areas from a governance perspective include: 

- Strategy - development of a climate change strategy – long-term out to 
2030 and beyond and short-term translating current priorities (into deliverable 
action plans (showing where carbon is produced in services, what can be 
changed, and resources needed to deliver this). The overview plan should 
set out how carbon neutral will be achieved. 

6 - - 
 

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 8



  

7 

 

Risk Area / Audit Entity 

Audit Report 

Assurance 
opinion 

Executive Summary / Residual Risk 
Summary of 

Recommendations 
High / Med / Low 

Direction 
of Travel 

Assurance 

- Risk Management - clear identification of climate risk with links to 
related environmental on service risks in the corporate risk register. These 
must show mitigations through strategy, policy, projects, actions and 
business plans. 
- KPIs - establishing NDC’s own targets, actions and KPIs from 
intelligence reports and Devon Climate Group, with supporting monitoring 
systems. 
- Performance – effective processes to support CAT’s focus and 
monitoring of progress against core strategy and agreed action plans. 

Procurement Reasonable 
Assurance 

The Council has a good procurement framework to procure goods and 
services with an important emphasis on achieving good value for money.  
Most purchases are being made using the standard procurement procedures, 
supported using the Pro-contract system to manage the procurement process 
within the rules. It was evident that the procurement team was providing good 
support to business areas in the procurement process, despite the absence 
of the primary procurement expert on maternity leave. As a result of these 
factors, we provide an overall Reasonable Assurance, although we identify 
opportunities to ensure procurement activity is better geared to secure value 
for money within the regulations.  

The current proposal for the re-organisation of the council’s organisation is 
that Procurement will be moved under the Head of Governance. We consider 
this a good move, especially if accompanied by increased focus on the 
resources they need to provide effective procurement support, and on their 
role to challenge procurement practices that result in additional risk or may 
not result in best value for money. For instance, we note that significantly 
larger numbers of exceptions (Waivers) are raised than we have observed in 
other authorities. 

- 7 1 
 

Governance Reasonable 
Assurance 

We are content that the Council meets the basic governance principles in the 
CIPFA framework. Our work has supported the council’s own review of 
governance and we are content that the Annual Governance Statement fairly 

- 12 5 
 

P
age 46

A
genda Item

 8



  

8 

 

Risk Area / Audit Entity 

Audit Report 

Assurance 
opinion 

Executive Summary / Residual Risk 
Summary of 

Recommendations 
High / Med / Low 

Direction 
of Travel 

Assurance 

reflects our joint findings. The report lists those recommendations and 
responses, although they will be separately tracked as AGS actions, rather 
than those from internal audit.   

We are confident that key governance elements have been maintained to a 
good level during the C-19 emergency despite changes to work practices 
caused by requirements such as to work from home and to hold virtual 
council meetings. For instance, council meetings have continued to be held 
virtually, are open to the public, and meeting notes and supporting papers are 
available for public view. Our ongoing audit work has provided assurance that 
key controls continue to operate as intended. We also undertook a specific 
review of Safe Staff operations to confirm a safe environment was being 
maintained for council staff and the public.  

Lack of capacity at senior management level has been a concern over the 
last year, with several senior manager posts vacant during the period. Senior 
management capacity is an issue that has been identified in previous Local 
Government Association reviews. It is now being addressed through the 
current governance re-organisation including the subsequent recruitment of 
senior managers for the new posts, to be completed by end of 2021. Creation 
of a new Head of Governance will help provide added emphasis on ensuring 
an effective governance and control framework is in place.  

We also identify opportunities to improve the amount of useful and accessible 
performance related information available to the public on the website, such 
as on annual performance reporting, and core performance indicators to 
explain more clearly what money was spent, what was delivered, and future 
priorities. We also identify that various parts of the website need review and 
updating to reflect current information. 

In November 2020 we provided a Reasonable Assurance for Risk 
Management as we considered that significant risks were being identified and 
escalated for review, and senior managers had a good awareness of risk. 
However, some audit recommendations have yet to be implemented, such as 
giving responsibility for the framework to the CORGI, updating the Risk 
Management Framework document, and reviewing and rationalising the 

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 8



  

9 

 

Risk Area / Audit Entity 

Audit Report 

Assurance 
opinion 

Executive Summary / Residual Risk 
Summary of 

Recommendations 
High / Med / Low 

Direction 
of Travel 

Assurance 

Corporate Risk Register. We are providing support to the Council in this area 
in the next few months. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Devon Audit Partnership 
 

The Devon Audit Partnership has been formed under a joint committee arrangement comprising of Plymouth, Torbay, Devon, North Devon, Mid 
Devon and Torridge councils.  We aim to be recognised as a high-quality internal audit service in the public sector.  We work with our partners by 
providing a professional internal audit service that will assist them in meeting their challenges, managing their risks and achieving their goals.  In 
carrying out our work we are required to comply with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards along with other best practice and professional 
standards. 

The Partnership is committed to providing high quality, professional customer services to all; if you have any comments or suggestions on our 
service, processes or standards, the Head of Partnership would be pleased to receive them at robert.hutchins@devonaudit.gov.uk 

 

P
age 48

A
genda Item

 8

mailto:robert.hutchins@devonaudit.gov.uk?subject=Email%20the%20DAP


 

1 

 

NORTH DEVON COUNCIL 

Report Date: 16th November 2021 
 
Topic: AUDIT RECOMMENDATION TRACKER 
 
Report by: CHIEF EXECUTIVE  
 

1 Introduction 

1.1 This is the regular progress report to the Committee in relation to action taken to address 

internal and external audit recommendations. 

 

2 Recommendations 

 

2.1That the Committee note the actions that have been taken to address identified risks since 
the 8th June 2021 Governance Committee meeting. 

 
2.2 That the Committee raises any areas of concern arising from the list of outstanding 

recommendations. 
 

3 Reasons for Recommendations 

 

3.1 To give assurance to the Committee that audit recommendations are being actively 
managed, and to give the Committee a full opportunity to review any areas of concern. 

 

4 Report 

 

4.1 SMT has reviewed the high and medium risk audit recommendations to assess progress 
and instigate any required actions. 

 
4.2 Since the last meeting the number of recommendations now tracked has risen to 1,304. 

 

Page 49

Agenda Item 10



 

2 

Table A) Live Audit Reports, Status & Numbers 

Code 

 

Title Status Progress High 
Risk 

Medium 
Risk 

Low 
Risk 

16 PL Planning Applications 2015/16  Overdue 83% 0 3 0 

17 SRR Security Review Report 2017/18  Overdue 98% 4 5 0 

19 GDPR General Data Protection Regulations 2018/19  Overdue 92% 0 0 7 

20 BC Business Continuity 2018/19  In Progress 55% 3 1 0 

20 FB&E Fraud, Bribery & Ethics 2018/19  In Progress 86% 0 5 1 

20 CC Cash Collection 2020/21  In Progress 50% 2 2 0 

20 CG & RM Corporate Governance & Risk Management 2020/21 In Progress 92% 6 2 0 

20 MCS&BC Main Accounting System & Budgetary Control 
2020/21 

 In Progress 50% 1 1 0 

20 P  Payroll 2019/20  Overdue 0% 0 0 1 

20 C Creditors In Progress 50% 0 3 0 

21 HB Housing Benefit 2020/21 In Progress 60% 0 2 2 

21 SC-19 O Safe Covid-19 Operations 2020/21 In Progress 77% 2 5 0 

21 BCFU Business Continuity Follow Up March 2021  In Progress 4% 6 3 0 

21 CSM&R Cyber Security – Malware & Ramsonware April 2021 In Progress  17% 8 9 3 

21 CT&NNDR Council Tax & NNDR 2020/21 In Progress 66% 0 2 1 

21 FUR Follow Up Recommendations April 2021  Overdue 50% 0 1 0 

21 Pro Procurement 2020/21  In Progress 12% 0 7 1 

21 PO Parking Operations 2020/21  In Progress 26% 2 0 0 

21 CCG Climate Change Governance  In Progress 75% 0 3 1 

21 D Debtors August 2021  In Progress 0% 0 2 3 

21 P Payroll 2020/21  In Progress 32% 0 9 6 

 

  

P
age 50

A
genda Item

 10



 

3 

Table B: Audit recommendations setting completed since the last Governance Committee 

Recommendation Closure Note Original Due 

Date 

Completed 

Date 

20 FB&E 04 Documented Procedures The recommendation went to Committee on 8th June and it was resolved 

that the procedural document for the investigation of suspected fraudulent 

occurrences be approved as set out in Appendix A of that agenda. 

30 Sep 2020 08 June 2021 

 

20 CC 03 An exercise to remove 

those entries on the weekly exception 

where the debit & credit totals upon 

invoice shown contra each other out 

All credit notes over 6 years old have now been cancelled and the system 

updated accordingly 

26 Feb 2021 07 Sept 2021 

20 FB&E 05 Reporting Management 

Information 

At Committee on 8th June it was resolved that an additional paragraph 

entitled “Periodic reporting of irregularities to Senior Management and 

Members” be added to the AFCBPS as set out in Appendix B in that 

agenda. 

30 Sep 2020 08 June 2021 

20 MCS&BC 01 Management should 

review current roles & consider if 

segregation can be improved 

In terms of journals, NDC accounts team is only small, no one outside the 
accounts team can enter journals, journals over £10,000 are reviewed 
quarterly by the Accountancy manager and monthly monitoring and 
outturn variance analysis would identify any anomalies. So we have 
accepted status quo is maintained and confirm that the small risk is 
accepted as necessary for business operations. 

31 Mar 2021 20 June 2021 

 

  

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 10



 

4 

 

21 CSM&R 10 Set up automated 

reported of user accounts inactive for, 

say, 60 days or more and disable the 

inactive accounts. 

We have always done this. We run a 'Last Login Report' against Active 

Directory. This highlights when users have last connected to NDC. Users 

are disabled and permissions removed from Active Directory when we 

have either received the leaver's form from the Manager, when HR inform 

us by emailing a distribution group, or capturing any missed user by 

running the last logon report.   

30 June 2021 07 June 2021 

 

21 CSM&R 01 Turn Office macros off 

unless they are required for day-to-

day business functions 

All macros have been disabled to reduce the threat window.   31 Mar 2022 07 June 2021 

21 CT&NNDR 03 NDC website 

Council Tax Empty Property narrative 

requires to be updated with regard 

charges applicable under the Rating 

(Property in Common Occupation) 

and Council Tax (Empty Dwellings) 

Act 2018 

The NDC website has been updated as per the recommendation 30 Jun 2021 08 Sept 2021 

  

P
age 52

A
genda Item

 10



 

5 

21 HB 03 Include Housing Benefit 

overpayments recovered within the 

HoR Performance and Financial 

Management report to S&R 

This will be included in the quarterly Housing Benefit write off report to the 

Accountancy Services Manager & added to the quarterly performance 

report  

30 Jun 2021 06 Sep 2021 

21 CSM&R 11 Increase the sample 

size for user accounts checked every 

three months or carry out & record full 

review of AD accounts annually 

We now have a recurring weekly task in the Service Desk calendar to 

check permissions of 5 users every Friday afternoon. We will accelerate 

this during quieter periods so we check all uses in a calendar year. The 

process will then start again. During this process we are also highlighting 

what we believe to be defunct groups in Active Director, these are 

emptied and will be deleted once we are satisfied they are no longer in 

use.   

 30 Jun 2021 07 Jun 2021 

21 SC-19 O 06 HoS responsible for 

regularly reviewing staffs time 

balances on Etarmis or paper system 

& escalate issues to SMT which are 

out of their control 

All Heads of Service will be reviewing Etarmis as a matter of course to 

ensure leave, flexi and Toil balances are managed appropriately. 

30 Jun 2021 07 Sept 2021 

21 P 04 Audit trail for a user setup 

request & authorisations for iTrent 

users who have access other than 

ESS e.g. Systems Admin, Payroll 

Admin, HR Admin. 

An e-mail request from an appropriate Manager is now required to give 

more than general access to iTrent 

30 Jun 2021 07 Sept 2021 

  

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 10



 

6 

21 P 09 Starters, Movers & Leavers 

we will work with the HR team to 

ensure that standard forms carry the 

appropriate degree of certification. 

HR confirmed that they will ensure all forms correctly certified moving 

forwards. Julie Chandler e-mail 7/9/21 and all HR staff notified. 

30 Jun 2021 07 Sept 2021 

21 SC-19 O 02 Programme of pro-

active HS inspections of all Council 

high risk settings by the HS Advisor / 

Team & report back to SMT 

Along with many organisations, the Council struggled to procure adequate 

supplies of PPE and hand sanitizers at the start of the pandemic. There is 

no longer any shortfall in the availability of this equipment / material. In 

promoting the findings of this audit, employees and their managers will be 

reminded of their responsibilities to maintain proper Covid-19 controls. 

This promotion of positive practice will be followed by a programme of 

pro-active HS inspections of all the Council’s high risk settings by the HS 

Advisor/her team. The findings will be reported back to SMT. The Council 

will invoke formal disciplinary procedures if need to ensure proper 

standards.   

30 Jun 2021 01 July 2021 

21 P 08 More recent Purchasing Card 

usage should be uploaded to the 

public portal (most recent upload was 

in December 2020 of the April to 

June 2020 data) 

This is completed, all transactions up to date.   01 Oct 2021 17 Aug 2021 

  

P
age 54

A
genda Item

 10



 

7 

20 CG&RM 01 Review, update & 

version control the Risk Management 

Framework & re-publish to Middle 

Managers 

Following CORGI meeting on 15th September, this document is being 
published to middle managers 

 
31 Dec 2020 

 

17-Sep-2021 

20 CG&RM 06 Republish the revised 

Risk Management Framework to all 

Middle Managers and Staff 

Following CORGI meeting 15th September, the document will now be 
circulated to all staff. 

 

31 Mar 2021 

 

17-Sep-2021 

20 CG&RM 08 CRR reviewed to 

significantly reduce the number of 

highest rated risk, core mitigating 

actions should be put into action 

central and tracked on Pentana to 

ensure management & 

implementation 

Following CORGI meeting on 15th September, some suggested risks 
have been highlighted to be de-escalated and the outcome will come from 
the meeting when presented. 

 31 Mar 2021 

 

 

17-Sep-2021 

21 HB 02 Management should 

consider when it will be able to 

reinstate the amount of monthly 

checks undertaken 

Accuracy checked have been re-instated following the reallocation of Test 
& Trace payments. 

30-June-2021 

 

30-June-2021 

21 CCG 01 A programme of reports 

will be considered by the S&R 

Committee to address all the issues 

raised and move the organisation to 

best practice 

A new Environmental Policy was adopted October 2021 

 

31-Oct-2021 

 

 

31-Oct-2021 

P
age 55

A
genda Item

 10



 

8 

21 CCG 02 Align CAT meetings with 

S&R dates so that CAT feeds into 

S&R more effectively with clear 

governance  

This has been implemented 

31-Oct-2021 

 

31-Oct-2021 

21 CCG 03 Include Climate Change 

as a risk on the CRR with these new 

risks being considered by the 

Council's Risk Management Group in 

October 

 Climate Risk has now been included on the Corporate Risk Register 

31-Oct-2021 

 

31-Oct-2021 

21 P 07 Review the sufficient level of 

support evidence to ensure that 

adequate records are retained going 

forward 

Screen shots of the General Ledger are now saved for the monthly payroll 
reconcilations. GL enquiries have been set up to review GL control codes 
as part of the monthly bank reconciliation 

 

30-Jun-2021 

 

03-Nov-2021 

  

P
age 56

A
genda Item

 10



 

9 

 

  

Table C: Outstanding Audit Recommendations where Head of Service have requested a revision to the due date 

 

Code Description Progress Latest Note 
Original Due 

Date 
Due Date 

16 PL 03 S106 

Agreements 

We recommend that as part of 

the Contract audit 2016/17 a 

review the administration of 

Section 106 Agreements is 

completed to assess the 

effectiveness of service 

delivery.  

50% 

07-Sep-2021 We have now developed an 
accurate ‘as is’ process map, where we 
identified seven different teams are keeping 
the same type of S106 records in different 
ways, usually one or more spreadsheets. 

From September we have a comprehensive list 
of Mastergov / DEF system changes needed 
for it to be able to become the sole repository 
of all information for S106. We will need to get 
a corporate agreement to forge ahead with the 
changes, by detailing the cost / benefit of them 
via a report to SMT – in the same way we did 
following other process-reviews. 

Terms of Reference have been received from 
DAP for a forthcoming Audit specifically for 
S106 which may supersede this 
recommendation. 

Request revised due date of  31st March 2022 

to allow for new audit to take place and 

recommendations to be published 

31-Dec-2016 31-Aug-2021 

P
age 57

A
genda Item

 10



 

10 

  

17 SRR 08 

Information 

Sharing 

The Council should ensure 
that the Customer Record 
Management system is fit for 
purpose and is accessible by 
all staff dealing with the 
Council’s service users, 
especially those with violence 
markers. As the reporting, 
recording and maintaining of 
information on incidents will 
always be user dependant, it is 
vital that all users are trained 
up and encouraged to make 
use of and update the CRM 
system regularly. 

The Council should also 

consider a regular group email 

updating users on both 

incidents and markers. 

85% 

31-Aug-2021 Additional extension requested 
for this action as ICT development have 
competing priorities at this time. There is an 
existing process/internal control in place as 
and when needed. 

 

Requested revised due date: 31st  March 2022 

30-Jun-2018 31-Aug-2021 

20 CC 04 

Contingency 

Plan for Cash 

Collection 

A Contingency Plan should be 

created for the cash collection 

function which is adequate for 

purpose. Staff should be made 

aware of the contingency plan 

and understand what is 

expected of them in the event 

of a business continuity issue.   

0% 

Will review contingency plans for Governance 
as part of new role 

 

Request extension to 31st December 2021 

31-Mar-2021 31-Aug-2021 

P
age 58

A
genda Item

 10



 

11 

  

21 SC-19 O 07 

SMT will 

ensure that a 

core level of 

mental health 

awareness is 

provided 

through its 

overarching 

Health & 

Wellbeing 

Strategy 

A series of courses have been 

provided to assist managers 

and staff with challenges 

during the pandemic, including 

mental health awareness / 

webinars. The courses have 

not been made mandatory and 

it is likely that these 

opportunities will have been 

taken up by only a few 

individuals.   

55% 

07-Sep-2021 The new Head of Organisational 
Development has now been recruited and in 
post. The Health & Wellbeing Strategies 
development will continue to be developed but 
many actions have already been delivered. 

 

  Extension of Time: 31 March 2022 

 

 

30-Jun-2021 30-Jun-2021 

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 10



 

12 

  

21 SC-19 O 05 

Introduce 

quarterly pulse 

surveys of 

every 

employee 

The Council undertook their 
survey in July 2020 to 
establish how people were 
coping at home. No survey has 
not been undertaken by the 
Council for the wider workforce 
to understand how Covid is 
impacting on the wider 
workforce. We consider that 
the Council should instigate 
periodic surveys as they 
provide insight to senior 
management on how staff are 
feeling and informs of any 
areas where time / resource 
could improve working 
conditions and wellbeing for 
staff. The move by Senior 
Management to carry out 
personalised risk assessments 
would enable management to 
provide tailored support. 
Undertaking a survey post 
implementation would be 
beneficial as this would provide 
a measure of impact and 
whether it was successful. 

0% 
An extension of time is requested for 30th 
November 21 to allow time for the OD group 
to consider. 

31-Jul-2021 31-Jul-2021 

P
age 60

A
genda Item

 10



 

13 

  

20 BC 01 

Update of the 

Business 

Continuity Plan 

& Policy 

The BCM Policy and BCIM 
Plan should be reviewed and 

Updated to reflect current 
Council requirements. 

Such policies and plans should 
then be reviewed and updated 
on an annual basis. 

  

10% 

Update of the Business Continuity Plan and 
Policy until the 31st December 2021.   

Since the 2018/19 Audit Business Continuity 

has been undergone another audit and in 

response a project plan was signed off by 

Senior Management in April 2021 to address 

these recommendations. This project plan was 

presented to Governance Committee in June 

2021 and a completion date of the 31st 

December 2021 was set.  There is still the 

intention to update the Business Continuity 

Implementation Plan and this is encompassed 

within audit recommendation 1 in the 2021 

audit. However, there are a number of actions 

that need to be completed prior to this stage. 

Therefore an extension to the 31st December 

is being requested to align this with the 

timeline for the project. It is estimated that the 

20 BC 01 is currently 10% completed.   

31-Mar-2021 31-Mar-2021 

P
age 61

A
genda Item

 10



 

14 

  

21 SC-19 O 03 

Urgently re-

instate Mental 

Health & 

Wellbeing 

Workstream 

During a review of North 

Devon’s risk management 

framework earlier in 2020, we 

were informed that the mental 

health and wellbeing 

workstream to address the 

mental health risk from the 

corporate risk register, had 

been put on hold due to the 

pandemic. The pandemic has 

had a significant negative 

impact on people’s mental 

health and wellbeing, which 

has been highlighted in the 

survey. This workstream 

needs to be urgently re-

instated   

0% 

There are 3 aspects to this recommendation; 

A new Attendance Policy – The majority of 
work has been undertaken with a draft policy 
agreed by SMT & Unison.  A few minor points 
to conclude and revised policy will then be 
rolled out to managers and staff. 

Mental Health First Aiders -  50% of the 
identified first aiders have been trained with the 
remaining to be trained shortly. 

Using group supervision counselling when 

teams have experienced particularly traumatic 

incidents – A group supervision provider has 

been identified and pilots taken place with 

successful outcomes. Now seeking to deliver 

on a regular basis 

Request revised due date 31 December 2021 

30-Jun-2021 30-Jun-2021 

P
age 62

A
genda Item

 10



 

15 

  

21 BCFU 02 
Identify & Focus on the Key 

Priority 1 Services 
40% 

Request extension until 31 December 2021 in 
line with final completion of project plan (this 
doesn't impact the delivery date, solely 
amends the situation with progress target 
dates). 

Business Impact Assessments have been 
received from all departments with exception of 
Environmental Health and Financial Services 
to date. 

The need for this has been discussed with 
Heads of Service and Business Continuity 
Leads have been instructed to complete as a 
priority. 

There were some delays because of annual 
leave, and it is possible that the SMT 
restructure will have an ongoing impact on the 
completion of this area of work. 

Once all BIAs have been received a priority list 
will be presented to SMT for consultation and 
once agreed the NDC BC Implementation Plan 
will be updated. The date for this was the 18 
October, for which it is now unlikely that we will 
meet this target, however the final project 
completion date of the 31 December 2021 is 
still achievable. 

 

31 Aug 2021 31 Aug 2021 

P
age 63

A
genda Item

 10



 

16 

  

21 BCFU 07 
Identify Key Contractor 

Services 
0% 

Request extension until 31 December 2021 in 
line with final completion of project plan (this 
doesn't impact the delivery date, solely 
amends the situation with progress target 
dates). 

Business Impact Assessments have been 
received from all departments with exception of 
Environmental Health and Financial Services 
to date. 

The need for this has been discussed with 
Heads of Service and Business Continuity 
Leads have been instructed to complete as a 
priority. 

There were some delays because of annual 
leave, and it is possible that the SMT 
restructure will have an ongoing impact on the 
completion of this area of work. 

Once all BIAs have been received a priority list 
will be presented to SMT for consultation and 
once agreed the NDC BC Implementation Plan 
will be updated. The date for this was the 18 
October, for which it is now unlikely that we will 
meet this target, however the final project 
completion date of the 31 December 2021 is 
still achievable. 

 

31 Aug 2021 31 Aug 2021 

P
age 64

A
genda Item

 10



 

17 

21 CSM&R 15 
Keep at least one backup 

offline at any given time 
0% 

We have 10TB of cloud storage which is not 
enough for all our servers/data. We are 
awaiting for priority services to be identified by 
the Business Continuity Plan.  

We have a meeting with Cristies (our back up 
supplier) on 15th Sept to discuss our needs. 
Budget has been made available and we will 
write the RFW stating that it isn’t viable to 
seeks costs from other suppliers as we wish 
our back-up suite to be supplied and managed 
by the same company in the event of a 
disaster 

Request revised due date of 31st January 
2022 

31 Aug 2021 31 Aug 2021 

21 CSM&R 17 

Update recovery/restoration 

process to include specific 

steps to verify all systems 

used in the recovery are clean 

from malware/ransomware 

before connecting to the 

backup & starting recovery. 

0% 

The feasibility of this recommendation is being 
explored with regard to our back up system 
and AV set up. At a recent meeting with DAP 
we flagged the issues with the Windows 10 
upgrade has put us behind schedule. 

Request revised due date: 31st March 2022  

31 Aug 2021 31 Aug 2021 

20 MCS&BC 

02 

Implementation of Civica 

Financials Software V19.5, 

V20 & V21 should be report to 

the S&R in the quarterly 

performance report 

0% There is a plan in place for the roll out of the 
most recent version by 31st March 2022 

30 Sept 2021 30 Sept 2021 

P
age 65

A
genda Item

 10



 

18 

  

21 P 02 

Revise the Expenses Policy 

aligned to the Employee Self-

Service Module 

0% 

The revised policy will need to be aligned with 
and reflect the Employee Self-service module 
and so the decision was taken to defer the 
review until ESS has been implemented. 

Request revised due date: 30th April 2022 

30-Sep-2021 30-Sep-2021 

21 P 06 

Look to introduce separation of 

duties within day to day payroll 

activities, ensuring 

independent quality control 

checks are introduced. 

80% 

Now the business grant have been completed 
more resource is being put into the Payroll 
function and this separation of duties will be 
enhanced over the next few months. 

Revised due date: 31st March 2022 

 

30-Sep-2021 30-Sep-2021 

21 P 12 

Feasibility of producing reports 

on (1) multiple payment to the 

same bank account; (2) 

changes to the bank account 

information where changes are 

process by HR/Payroll. 

95% 

Reports run in Test, just a few queries to 
resolve with supplier. 

Request revised due date: 31st January 
2022 

31-Jul-2021 31-Jul-2021 

P
age 66

A
genda Item

 10



 

19 

 

Table D: Outstanding Audit Recommendations 

 

Code Description Progress Latest Note 
Original Due 

Date 
Due Date 

NIL      

P
age 67

A
genda Item

 10



 

Filepath: I:\Audit and Risk\Audit Committee\2021 Reports 

 

5 Progress tracking of Annual Governance Statement 

 

a. An annual review of NDC’s governance arrangements leads to the Annual 
Governance Statement, which forms part of the Statement of Accounts.  

 

b. In addition to any other issues the review captures recommendations from external 
and internal audit and inspections and sets out an action plan. This plan is tracked 
through Covalent; Table E below. 

 

 

6 Constitution Context  

 

Appendix and 
paragraph 

Referred or 
delegated power? 

5.5 Delegated 
 

7 Statement of Internal Advice 

 
c. The author (below) confirms that advice has been taken from all appropriate 

Councillors and officers. 
 

 

Author: Sarah Higgins     Date: 3rd November 2021 

Reference: Audit Recommendation Report November 2021 V1.1 

 

Page 68

Agenda Item 10



 

Filepath: I:\Audit and Risk\Audit Committee\2021 Reports 

Table E: Annual Governance Statement 2019/20 

 

Code Description Status 
Progress 

Bar 
Latest Note 

Original 

Due Date 
Due Date 

AGS 19/20 01 

Review all 

business continuity 

plans an 

introduction of 

business 

resumption plans 

A review of all business 

continuity plans and 

introduction of a 

corporate business 

resumption plan together 

with a cyber attack 

response plan, a revised 

Disaster Recovery Plan 

and new Cyber Incident 

Response Plan 

 In 

Progress 
0% 

An update of the BIAs was 

presented to SMT 08 November 

2021, which identified recovery 

points to enable ICT to consider 

their response. ICT also have a 

Cyber Scenario workshop 

booked for November which will 

provide an playbook as an output 

of this exercise. 

 

31-Mar-

2022 
31-Mar-2022 

AGS 19/20 02 

Development of an 

Action Plan to 

implement 

recommendations 

from the Peer 

Review 

Formal reporting of the 

Peer review report 

should take place once 

received. An Action Plan 

should also be 

developed to implement 

appropriate 

recommendations. 

 In 

Progress 
0% 

NDC invited the LGA back to 

carry out a Follow-up Corporate 

Peer Challenge and we await 

their final report, which will then 

we published to all members and 

staff and the action plan tracked 

and reported against. 

31-Mar-

2021 
30 Sep 2021 

P
age 69

A
genda Item

 10



 

Filepath: I:\Audit and Risk\Audit Committee\2021 Reports 

Request revised due date: 31st 

March 2022 

 

AGS 19/20 03 

Financial and 

Contract 

Procedure rules 

A system for reporting 

breaches to Governance 

Committee should be 

introduced 

 In 

Progress 
0% 

Due to the continued effects of 

Covid-19 this has not yet been 

brought forward, therefore an 

extension has been requested to 

the end of the financial year. 

Request revised due date: 31st 

March 2022 

 

 

31-Mar-

2021 
30 Sep 2021 

 

P
age 70

A
genda Item

 10



 

North Devon Council 
 

Report Date: November 2021 

Topic:  Approval of compensation offer, following feedback investigation for 

case: 310900212 

Report by: Jo Teasdale, Customer Feedback and Service Improvement Officer 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1 Following a review of a stage two complaint, we propose a compensation 
payment of £1,232.00 (which exceeds any officer delegation), to settle 
customer complaint reference: 310900212.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
2.1 Members to decide to accept or challenge the recommendation for the 

above complaint, taking into account extracts from the draft redacted 
response in Appendix 1. 
 

2.2 If Members accept the recommendation, the Council will: 
 

2.2.1 offer £1,232.00 for recognition of our error and their time and 
trouble taken in pursuing an unnecessary course of action. 

 
2.2.2 apologise to the complainant. 

 

2.3 If Members challenge the recommendation, the complainant will have  
an opportunity to refer their complaint to the Local Government and Social 
Care Ombudsman’s, to make a final determination. 

 
3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
3.1. We need to acknowledge when we have made an error and ensure any 

impact of this is not negatively borne by the customer. The extracts from the 
draft customer response in Appendix 1 reflects we have evaluated the 
evidence of their expenditure against our mistake and reimburse that 
incurred, as a compensation offer.  
 

3.2. The Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman recommend we seek 
to place a customer back in a position they would have been in if not for the 
error. The £1,232.00 compensation offer reflects this. 

 

 
 

Page 71

Agenda Item 11



 
 

3.3. It is equally important we learn a lesson from any justified complaint and I 
have been working with the Planning Service Manager to put measures in 
place to ensure our pre-application advice is clearer to our customers and 
we take a more ‘plain English’ approach in future. We shall be driving these 
improvements forwards in the coming months, in consultation with users. 

 
4. REPORT 

 
4.1. The complainant complained to us they had received incorrect and 

misleading advice after paying for pre-application planning advice: 
 

4.2. The complainant alleges the Planning Officer gave on-site verbal advice that 
their proposal would be acceptable in planning terms. There is no evidence of 
this, however there is written evidence that we gave similar, incorrect advice. 

 

4.3. Based on the advice we would be likely to grant planning permission, the 
complainant paid for a full application, as well as the reports we ask for to 
support the application. 

 

4.4. Our Planning Officer sought consultee advice from our Planning Policy 
Officers at part of the consideration of a full application. Planning Policy 
replied, advising the proposal did not meet our planning policies and should 
be refused.  

 

4.5. Our Planning Officer relayed this information to the applicant and we refused 
the application, at this stage the complainant made a stage one complaint. 
The Lead Planning Officer investigated the complaint and responded, 
advising they did not agree we had been at fault. 

 

4.6. The complainant asked for a stage two review, which was undertaken by the 
Customer Feedback and Service improvement Officer. Extracts from the draft 
customer response are attached (as Appendix 1). 

 
 

5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1. If members approve the offer which the complainant subsequently accepts, 

the payment of £1.232.00 would need to be paid from the existing Planning 
Services budget. 

 
6. EQUALITIES ASSESSMENT 
 

6.1.  There are no equalities implications anticipated as a result of this report.   
 

7. CONSTITUTIONAL CONTEXT 
 

7.1.     Part 3 Annexe 1 paragraph 5(b) 

Page 72

Agenda Item 11



 
 

7.2.     This is a delegated power. 

 

8. STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 
 

8.1. This report contains no confidential information or exempt information under 
the provisions of Schedule 12A of 1972 Act. 
 

9. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

9.1. The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report: 
 

- Planning pre-application submission and correspondence 
- Full planning application and correspondence. 

 
 (These background papers are available for inspection and kept on our 
planning software). 
 

10. STATEMENT OF INTERNAL ADVICE 
 

10.1. The author (below) confirms that advice has been taken from all 
appropriate Councillors and Officers. 
 
 
Mrs Jo Teasdale, Customer Feedback and Service Improvement Officer. 

 
 

Page 73

Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank



1. You are unhappy with the way xxxxxxx dealt with your pre-application 
advice for the erection of a log cabin within your, garden, namely: 

 
a) you are unhappy xxxxxx responded to your pre-application enquiry 

without first making a site visit, especially after you clearly asked for 
one when you gave your paperwork and spoke to our receptionist; 
 

We give advice about pre-applications in many places; our website says: 
“Dependent on the type of development you are considering, one of our 
Planning Officers may not need to speak to you at all before sending you 
their pre-application advice. Alternatively, they may require a discussion 
with you either by phone or via a pre-arranged meeting at our offices or on-
site; they will advise you if this is the case.”  

 
and  

 
“If your fee includes a meeting(s), the Planning Officer will advise if, how 
and/or when this will happen ...” 
 
The application form, also on our website and which you completed, states: 
“The more detailed information you give us the quicker and more accurate 
our response can be. Occasionally an officer may need to arrange a site 
visit.” 
 
In February 2021, our Councillors approved the new charging schedule 
from 1 April 2021 (for applications, like yours which fell under our previous 
charges amounts, before 1 April 2021, we had a leaflet on our website with 
the charges within it). On our website fee list now, we advise meetings are: 
“… maximum offered at Case Officer discretion”, as we no longer use the 
guidance document. For clarity, the guidance document at the time you 
made your application stated: “Requests for pre-application advice, 
including a request for a meeting, need to be made in writing and sent to: 
Strategic Development & Planning North Devon Council Lynton House 
Commercial Road Barnstaple EX31 1DG… Enquiries must also be 
accompanied by the appropriate fee. The fees are based on the size, type 
and likely complexity of the proposal. It includes a site visit by the planning 
officer if necessary…” 
 
I have met with our Customer Services Supervisors and asked them to 
remind our reception and telephone team that whilst one meeting is noted 
as being included in a pre-application review, they should emphasise to our 
customers that this would always be a choice by the planner and not the 
customer. I am sorry if we did not make this clear during your visit. I also 
note, you did receive a visit from xxxxxx, albeit after they sent you their 
response. 
 

b) you claim xxxxxx gave you ‘positive verbal confirmation at a site 
meeting’ with you; you advise they specifically confirmed they could 
apply the same conditions as they had to a holiday let for a property 
opposite yours; 

Page 75

Agenda Item 11
Appendix A

https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/planning-and-building-control/pre-application-advice/pre-application-information/
https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/media/378005/ndc_pre-app-enquiry_form_oct2017.pdf
https://democracy.northdevon.gov.uk/documents/g2309/Public%20reports%20pack%2024th-Feb-2021%2018.30%20Council.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.northdevon.gov.uk/documents/g2309/Public%20reports%20pack%2024th-Feb-2021%2018.30%20Council.pdf?T=10


 
Often, when I am investigating a complaint, I have conflicting advice from a 
customer and one of our officers, as in this case. I understand your claim 
and am not disputing it. However xxxxxx advised me they were cautious 
when you met, so as not to give any promises, as they say they always do 
during any site visit and again, I do not dispute this.  
 
Therefore, I do not feel it would be professional of me to comment on a 
specific allegation about what a member of our staff said or did not say 
when I do not have any independent witnesses to corroborate what actually 
happened / was said at the time. That said, if you have evidence to support 
this part of your complaint, by an independent third-party, please can you 
forward this to me and I shall be happy to re-open this part of your 
complaint. 

 
c) you are unhappy xxxxxx did not respond to you for ‘over three 

months’, despite our 28-day aim. You explain you tried unsuccessfully 
to speak to them during this period; when you did speak to them, they 
apologised for the delay, then took a further four months to reply to 
your phone calls, messages and emails; 
 
I have looked at our planning and customer services records however, as 
we do not routinely record telephone calls, I cannot trace or note any calls 
you may have had directly to xxxxxx.  
 
I think, as I will be referring to event dates later on in this response, it will be 
helpful for me to provide you with key timelines for both the pre-application 
request and full application (again, any underlining is mine, for emphasis): 
 
DETAILS REMOVE AS WOULD IDENTIFY COMPLAINANT 
 

As you will see from the timeline, xxxxxx met all times and deadlines for 
the pre-application and full application responses. I note they were 
awaiting information from you / your agent on occasion, however this did 
not impact the deadline dates. Indeed, when I was looking at our records, 
I noted their contact with your agent was prompt (often the same day as 
she had contacted them), so I cannot criticise xxxxxx for any obvious 
delays on their part. In respect of their contact with you after they had 
made their site visit, it appears from the timeline that they had advised 
they needed more information from you before they could assess your 
proposal change from annexe to holiday use. I cannot see he received 
anything, hence their response to you on 23.06.2020. 
 

d) you received xxxxxx written response to your pre-application 
enquiry, claiming it was ‘the opposite’ of what they had discussed 
with you, including a list of requirements you would need to meet for 
us to consider granting planning permission; 
 
I cannot find evidence xxxxxx spoke to you before you they sent you their 
pre-application advice on 30.10.2020, this was for the proposal you paid 

Page 76

Agenda Item 11
Appendix A



for and completed the application form for, which you described on your 
pre-application request form as: “To erect a log cabin as an annexe to the 
main property within the garden”.  
 
After they sent this, you contacted them and they arranged the site visit 
and met with you. I understand it was only at this meeting xxxxxx became 
aware of your intention of the development not to be an annexe but that 
you intended for it to be used as a separate holiday accommodation. They 
followed-up this meeting to explain in writing they did not believe we would 
support a development of that kind and why.  
 
As I advise earlier in this response, I cannot comment on what may / may 
not have been discussed on site, I must look at evidence to make a 
judgement. In this case, I cannot find fault with Xxxxxx’s second tranche of 
advice to you, based on your proposed amended use of the cabin, 
(indeed, I could argue that they exceeded your expectation, as they could 
have insisted you make and pay for a separate pre-application enquiry, as 
your proposal had changed). 
 
As I cannot find any proof Xxxxxx gave you, or your agent, any indication 
of a positive outcome for your proposal for holiday accommodation at the 
pre-application stage, I cannot uphold this part of your complaint. I believe 
it is worth me explaining at this point that, in all cases, our pre-application 
advice is always a Planning Officer’s view and explanation on what 
someone can expect if they make a full application. We are careful in all 
cases to explain this when we give that advice, as we cannot predict an 
outcome of a full application until we have it to fully review and get 
consultee opinion on.  
 
Pre-application advice exists so we can assist people in explaining what 
we would need to consider a proposal and the likelihood of its success, 
before they go through the expense of making a full application. The only 
way for anyone to properly ‘test’ a proposal, is for them to make a full 
application. If we should refuse this, they can further ‘test’ it by making an 
appeal to the Planning Inspectorate, which is the position you are in. 

 
1. i) You are unhappy Xxxxxx’s pre-application written advice to you about 

planning policy DM18 was incorrect and misleading, as they listed and 
quoted DM18 as being required for the 'area' you live in and requested a 
market report showing the benefit to the ‘area’ 

 
As I have explained, Xxxxxx’s pre-application advice was for your proposal: 
“To erect a log cabin as an annexe to the main property within the garden”, so 
I cannot agree they gave you any misinformation as part of this response; 
their reply to you was thorough and comprehensive. 
 
Following their advice on 30.10.2019, you explained the change of your 
proposal, wishing to instead make a holiday accommodation. On 07.11.2019, 
Xxxxxx emailed you, “… if you can clarify this, I will carry out further 
consultations and provide an update response relating to holiday use…”.  

Page 77

Agenda Item 11
Appendix A



 
On 23.06.2020, you contacted Xxxxxx, asking for an update and they emailed 
you that day, explaining: “You have not submitted further information in terms 
of elevations, location or a business plan for the proposal... In respect of the 
above, I am not convinced at this stage that your proposal would accord with 
the principles of DM18 to provide tourism accommodation in the open 
countryside.”  
 
I cannot find evidence you supplied anything further to Xxxxxx, so again, I 
believe their advice at this stage was clear and cannot agree with your view it 
was ‘misleading’, as they clearly state at this stage your proposal does not 
conform with our planning policy DM18, the same finding in the full 
application. 
 
ii) You advise Xxxxxx again confirmed misinformation to you, in writing, 
for application xxxxx; 
 
Your agent submitted full application 11111 on xx December 2020, at this time 
Xxxxxx was on a period of Christmas leave; however, when they returned, 
they assessed the documents and on 13.01.2021 they emailed your agent to 
express their concerns about the proposal.  
 
In this email, whilst they clearly raise concerns about the proposal meeting our 
planning policy DM18, I do not think they clearly and comprehensively 
explained why and how. I have read the information they sent several times 
and I believe it was confusing and overcomplicated. I feel it was only when 
they received the consultee response from our Planning Policy Team, we had 
an easily understandable response, which explained in plain English how and 
why the proposal did not meet planning policy; Xxxxxx sent this to your agent 
the same day.  
 
Therefore, whilst I cannot agree with you Xxxxxx gave you ‘misinformation’, I 
believe their information to your agent was not clear on 13.01.2021 (although I 
appreciate their commitment to customer care in making your agent aware of 
their concerns as soon as possible in the application process).  
 
Six days after they gave your agent unclear advice, they then sent very clear 
information, so I apologise if, within this short timeframe you or your agent 
were confused in any way. The Planning Policy Team consultee response 
plainly disagreed with the assertion of your agent’s statements in the 
submission and this is why we use consultees – they are the experts and their 
view is always needed by a planner to be able to understand implications of a 
proposal, whether it be on highways, drainage or planning policy, as in this 
case.  
 

2. You explain Xxxxxx rang your agent on 19.01.2021 and explained they 
had ‘made a mistake’, as they had not realised planning policy DM18 was 
not for the 'area' as they had previously advised, it was site-specific;  

 

Page 78

Agenda Item 11
Appendix A



Again, as we do not record telephone calls and Xxxxxx does not recall the 
same conversation as your agent, I will not comment on what may / may not 
have been discussed. I must use the evidence I have to make a judgement. 
 
Xxxxxx is one of our Senior Planning Officers and I cannot see where they 
‘consistently’ gave you or your agent incorrect advice about planning policy 
DM18. As I highlight earlier in this response, I can only find evidence that 
Xxxxxx raised concerns about both log cabin proposals at this site (the 
annexe and as holiday accommodation). I cannot see any proof Xxxxxx gave 
you or your agent any impression, at any time, the proposal would be likely to 
gain planning approval.  
 
That said, I believe Xxxxxx’s written explanations were not always clear and, 
after speaking to Xxxxxx, they agreed that they could have made this 
information more understandable when explaining planning policy DM18 – 
although they strongly deny your allegation this was because they did not 
understand the policy. They also does not recall telling your agent they had 
made a ‘mistake’. 
 
Looking at the timeline, in hindsight, Xxxxxx could have used their site visit, or 
replied to one of one of the copied emails from your agent with Mr Young at 
DCC, to clarify exactly why we would not support holiday accommodation at 
this site, which is that there is no existing holiday accommodation there to 
replace. This is a very unambiguous point and I believe had they explained 
this at the outset, you may have chosen NOT to submit a full application, so I 
shall address this point further in my response to point 6., below. 

 
3. i) you explain you obviously cannot satisfy planning policy DM18, so question 

why we asked you to provide information at pre-application stage to 
support your holiday cabin proposal; 
 
and 
  
Ii)  you explain there were no objections to your full application 
proposal, so ask why we did not explain our stance earlier and save you 
the expenses you went to; 
 
As I cover in my responses to earlier points, we concluded your pre-
application response which was for a different proposal that the application 
and I can find no fault in our actions for this.  
 
After we sent you the view on the annexe, you changed the pre-application 
proposal, from an annexe to a holiday cabin and Xxxxxx visited you to discuss 
this, then asked you for more information so they could assess it – they did 
not receive any more information, so sent their view without it. This view was 
that the proposal you discussed did not meet our planning policy DM18 and 
would likely not receive planning approval.  
 
I have discussed this complaint with Mrs Bailey our Planning Services 
Manager and we agree that we need to look at improving the way we respond 

Page 79

Agenda Item 11
Appendix A



to pre-application requests. On occasion, as I believe this case demonstrates, 
our Planners will use a lot of technical details and language, which give a 
large amount of complex information. This can be extremely confusing for 
someone who is not an agent or someone with no prior planning knowledge.  
 
We need to appreciate an applicant will often just want an indication of 
whether their proposal is viable or not, with a brief and clear explanation of 
why. Our ‘template’ appears, in some cases as this one, to have evolved into 
a three+ page list of complex legislation and planning policy. Whilst this can 
be useful, it is not always clear and understandable.  
 
I have been investigating planning complaints for almost 20 years and I still 
read some information sent to customers and feel confused. Part of my role is 
to work with Mrs Bailey on improving our services, such as pre-applications. 
We had already recognised a need to change the way we send out our pre-
application advice and begun to implement some changes before looking at 
your complaint. I know this may be cold comfort to you, as you have already 
been through this process and are unhappy with it, but I hope you are 
comforted we have learnt a further lesson from your complaint to improve this 
service to you and others in the future. 

 
4. You have asked for us to resolve your concerns (as you have a ‘legal 

route’ lodged and suspended with you home insurers legal team) by 
granting you planning permission, instead of you needing to take this 
action. You believe we can now approve your application using ‘material 
considerations indicate otherwise’; 
 
Planning law is set out in legislation and, to ensure transparency, consistency 
and equality of service, we will always adhere to this.  
 
For application 11111, Xxxxxx reviewed the proposed holiday home 
development in line with national and local planning policy. Their view was 
based on consultee advice and was signed off by our Lead Officer, who 
judged it to be a ‘sound’ decision.  
 
Your only avenue now, to challenge our planning refusal for your proposal, is 
to lodge an appeal with the Planning Inspectorate, as I discussed with you 
some weeks ago.  
 
It is not within my power as a complaint investigator to seek to change a 
planning decision made by one of our professional planners, as long as we 
followed the correct procedure in doing so (which we did). My role is to check 
they acted within law, policy and procedures in making their judgement and 
address your concerns.  
 

5. You claim that had Xxxxxx correctly known and explained to you 
planning policy DM18, you would not have continued with a full 
application process. You explain you have spent a considerable amount 
of money (including paying for an ecology report, levels report, 

Page 80

Agenda Item 11
Appendix A



architects fees, site clearing costs, mortgage and legal advice and 
getting a mortgage) and wasted months of your time in the process;  
 
I believe there is some fault by us in this case, as I have covered previously in 
this reply. Your pre-application advice was for an annexe to your home and 
Xxxxxx advised you that this was likely to be refused.  
 
Xxxxxx, although visiting the site and discussing potential holiday 
accommodation with you, did not receive any detail from you about your 
holiday home proposal at the pre-application stage, despite them requesting 
it. However, despite this, I would have expected them to know policy DM18 
and to have made it very clear to you at their site visit and in writing that, 
unless you had an existing holiday use at the site, your proposal would not 
meet planning policy DM18 and would be unlikely to get our permission / 
approval.  
 
Upon reading their email advice to you of 23.06.2020, this does not do this, 
instead they explain (again, underlining is mine, for emphasis): “In respect of 
the above, I am not convinced at this stage that your proposal would accord 
with the principles of DM18 to provide tourism accommodation in the open 
countryside. If an application were submitted, it should be supported by a 
statement outlining how the development helps to improve the diversity of the 
existing tourism offer in the area. You would need to show how this 
development would help to improve and diversify the existing holiday offer. 
For example are there other larger holiday units in the village centre or could 
this provide for a larger number of occupants.”  I believe this advice is 
misleading and encouraged you to make a full application. 
 
Within my role as complaint investigator I have to determine if any of our 
officers or practices has been at fault. If I judge we have, then I must decide if 
the fault has caused you an injustice and, if so, to put you (as the 
complainant) back into the position you would have been in but for the fault. 
 
As I have already explained: 
 

1. I believe Xxxxxx did not take an opportunity to make our position very 
clear (in respect of planning policy DM18) at the site visit or during 
contact with your / your agent afterwards during the pre-application 
stage. We accept this advice was misleading; 

2. had Xxxxxx made our position clearer at the earliest opportunity, you 
may have chosen not to (or delayed) make a full application and pay 
for / supply all the documentation needed for that application; 

3. furthermore, Xxxxxx’s advice following the application submission, on 
planning policy DM18 could and should have explained what it did six 
days later, that the proposal was not acceptable, as it did not meet 
planning policy. 

 
I have considered this information, along with supplied copies of your 
expenditure relating to your complaint / the application. I have also considered 
if we can put you back into the position you would have been in but for the 

Page 81

Agenda Item 11
Appendix A



fault. Taking all of this into account and having discussed them with my 
colleagues, we agreed: 
 
- [full planning application fee]; we accept you would have been unlikely 

to submit a full application had we clearly explained at pre-application 
stage that you would be unlikely to gain permission for holiday 
accommodation because you did not have existing holiday 
accommodation. That said, you may have chosen to ‘test’ the application 
process, as pre-application advice is just an indicator. Therefore, we would 
like to offer you a refund of the full application fee and service charge that 
you paid of £487; 
 

- [the Ecology Report, to support your full application]; again, we 
accept you would have been unlikely to submit a full application had we 
clearly explained at pre-application stage that you would be unlikely to 
gain permission for holiday accommodation because you did not have 
existing holiday accommodation. That said, you may have chosen to ‘test’ 
the application process, as pre-application advice is just an indicator. 
Therefore, we would like to offer you a refund of the ecology report costs, 
of £295;  

 
- [the grounds clearance fees]; we will not consider these JDR 

Maintenance costs as part of this complaint. We would not advise, accept 
or expect any need to arrange for site clearance or other works until they 
had secured planning permission. We did not indicate at any stage we 
were likely to support your proposal, so we would not reimburse these 
costs; 

 
- [the legal fees, time & travel for signing legal documents to transfer 

legal ownership]; we will not consider any of these fees / costs as part of 
this complaint. You made a personal choice to take this action and is does 
not form part of our requirement for you to make the application. Again, we 
did not indicate at any stage we even knew of this action, nor did we 
require it, so we would not reimburse these costs; 

 
- [Agent / architect fees] you will have needed plans, documents for your 

original (annexe) and a follow-up pre-application submission (holiday 
home) proposals, for Xxxxxx to give you a full response. In addition, we 
believe to appoint an agent to act of your behalf was a choice you made to 
assist you, not a necessity or based on our recommendation. The 
Planning Portal and our officers / website can and will guide applicants 
through the planning process, so I cannot agree we would be responsible 
for any of your agent’s fees in this instance; 
 

- [the levels survey]; again, we accept you would have been unlikely to 
submit a full application had we clearly explained at pre-application stage 
that you would be unlikely to gain permission for holiday accommodation 
because you did not have existing holiday accommodation. That said, you 
may have chosen to ‘test’ the application process, as pre-application 

Page 82

Agenda Item 11
Appendix A



advice is just an indicator. Therefore, we would like to offer you a refund of 
the levels survey costs, of £450;  

 
As well as this compensation offer of £1,232.00 (without prejudice) as full and final 
settlement of your compensation claim, we would like to sincerely apologise for any 
frustration and anxiety you have felt during the application and complaint process. It 
is never our intention to make customers feel apprehension in dealing with us and 
we are sorry you needed to complain. I assure you we will learn a lesson from this 
case. 
 
If you would like to accept our ex-gratia without prejudice offer, please can you reply 
to this email with the attached form completed, as this concludes my review, which is 
final with no provision for you to ask us to review it again (meaning we shall not 
correspond further about the same matter). This does not stop you from making a 
new complaint about other matters in the future, or if you remain unhappy with the 
outcome of this complaint, you can pursue your dissatisfaction by asking the Local 
Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO) (the Ombudsman) to review 
your complaint.  

The Ombudsman looks at individual complaints about councils, all adult social care 
providers (including care homes and home care agencies) and some other 
organisations providing local public services. It investigates matters fairly and 
impartially and is free to use. You usually have up to 12 months to do this, starting 
from the date you first knew about the matter you complained about, not from the 
date of this letter. The Ombudsman will normally only consider complaints made 
within that time but can decide to look at older complaints if there is a good reason to 
do so. There are some matters the Ombudsman cannot or will not investigate. In 
these cases it will explain clearly the reason for its decision. 

The Ombudsman’s contact details are: website: www.lgo.org.uk, telephone: 0300 
061 0614, opening hours: Monday to Friday - 10am to 4pm (except public holidays);  
you will need to provide them with a copy of this letter and our earlier responses to 
you, so they can consider your complaint. 

Yours sincerely, 
 
Mrs Jo Teasdale 
 
Customer Feedback and Service Improvement Officer 
NORTH DEVON COUNCIL (www.northdevon.gov.uk) 
P O Box 379, BARNSTAPLE 
Devon, EX32 2GR 
 
Tel: 01271 388247 

Page 83

Agenda Item 11
Appendix A

https://www.lgo.org.uk/
https://www.lgo.org.uk/
https://www.lgo.org.uk/
http://www.northdevon.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



Governance Survey (Edit) Microsoft Forms 

Governance Survey 

16:52 
Average time to7 Responses complete 

1. Does the Governance Committee have written terms of reference that are approved by the 
council and reviewed periodically? 

Yes 7 

No 0 

Don't know 0 

2. Additional comments / action 

0 Responses 

3. Has the Governance Committee been provided with sufficient membership, authority and 
resources to perform its role effectively and independently? 

Yes 6 

No 0 

Don't know 1 

Page 85

Agenda Item 12

https://www.office.com/launch/forms?auth=2


Governance Survey (Edit) Microsoft Forms 

4. Additional comments / action 

1 Latest Responses 

"I would like to see further training for committeeResponses 
members" 

5. Does the Governance Committee make a formal annual report on its work and performance 
during the year to Full Council? 

Yes 7 

No 0 

Don't know 0 

6. Additional comments / action 

0 

Responses 

7. Has the Governance Committee Chair either previous knowledge of, or received appropriate 
training on, financial and risk management, accounting concepts and standards, and the 
regulatory regime? 

Yes 4 

No 0 

Don't know 3 

8. Additional comments / action 

1 Responses 

Page 86

Agenda Item 12



Governance Survey (Edit) Microsoft Forms 

9. When you joined the Governance Committee were you provided with appropriate induction 
training? 

Yes 6 

No 1 

10. Additional comments / action 

Latest Responses 

"I have nothing to compare it with (KJ- selected No as answer compuls…1 Responses 

11. Have all Members' skills and experiences been assessed and training given for identified gaps? 

Yes 1 

No 3 

Don't know 3 

12. Additional comments / action 

Latest Responses 

2 Responses 
"I presume so (KJ- selected Yes as answer compulsory - and nothing tic… 

13. Does each Member declare their business interests at each Committee meeting? 

Yes 5 

No 2 

Page 87

Agenda Item 12



Governance Survey (Edit) Microsoft Forms 

14. Additional comments / action 

Latest Responses 

"I would hope so"2 Responses 

15. Are Members sufficiently independent of the Council's other key Committees? 

Yes 5 

No 1 

Don't know 1 

16. Additional comments / action 

Latest Responses 

"How to distinguish? If a discipline matter comes up about an officer?"1 Response 

17. Are members attending meetings on a regular basis and, if not, is appropriate action taken? 

Yes 6 

No 1 

Don't know 0 

18. Additional comments / action 

Latest Responses 

"If a member is not attending it should be asked why? maybe addition…
1 Response 

Page 88

Agenda Item 12



Governance Survey (Edit) Microsoft Forms 

19. Are meetings free and open without political influences being displayed? 

Yes 7 

No 0 

20. Additional comments / action 

0 Responses 

21. Does the authority's Section 151 officer or deputy attend all meetings? 

Yes 7 

No 0 

22. Additional comments / action 

0 Responses 

23. Does the Governance Committee consider how meaningful the Annual Governance Statement 
is? 

Yes 5 

No 2 

Don't know 0 

Page 89

Agenda Item 12



Governance Survey (Edit) Microsoft Forms 

24. Additional comments / action 

1 Response 

25. Does the Governance Committee satisfy itself that the system of internal control has operated 
effectively throughout the reporting period? 

Yes 6 

No 1 

Don't know 0 

26. Additional comments / action 

Latest Responses 

"no because there is not a full1 Response 
understanding" 

27. Has the Governance Committee considers how it integrates with other committees that may 
have responsibility for risk management? 

Yes 4 

No 1 

Don't know 2 

28. Additional comments / action 

0 Responses 

Page 90

Agenda Item 12



Governance Survey (Edit) Microsoft Forms 

29. Has the Governance Committee (with delegated responsibility) or the Full Council adopted 

"Managing the Risk of Fraud - Actions to Counter Fraud and Corruption"? 

Yes 7 

No 0 

Don't know 0 

30. Additional comments / action 

Latest Responses 

"still concerned about fraud"1 Responses 

31. Does the Governance Committee ensure that the "Actions to Counter Fraud and Corruption" 

are being implemented? 

Yes 6 

No 0 

Don't know 1 

32. Additional comments / action 

0 Response 

Page 91

Agenda Item 12



5/18/2021 Governance Survey (Edit) Microsoft Forms 

33. Is the Governance Committee made aware of the role of risk management in the preparation 

of the Internal Audit Plan? 

Yes 6 

No 0 

Don't know 1 

34. Additional comments / action 

0 Responses 

35. Does the Governance Committee review the Authority's Strategic Risk Register at least every six 

months? 

Yes 6 

No 0 

Don't know 1 

36. Additional comments / action 

0 Responses 

37. Does the Governance Committee monitor how the Authority assesses its risk? 

Yes 7 

No 0 

Don't know 0 

Page 92

Agenda Item 12



5/18/2021 Governance Survey (Edit) Microsoft Forms 

38. Additional comments / action 

0 Responses 

39. Does the Governance Committee consider specifically: • the suitability of accounting policies 

and treatments • major judgments made • large write-offs • changes in accounting treatment • 

the reasonableness of accounting estimates the narrative aspects of reporting? 

Yes 7 

No 0 

Don't know 0 

40. Additional comments / action 

Latest Responses 

"however decisions, promises seem to be taken without consulting the …1 Responses 

41. Is a Governance Committee meeting scheduled to receive the external Auditor’s report to 

those charged with governance including a discussion of proposed adjustments to the 

accounts and other issues arising from the Governance? 

Yes 7 

No 0 

Don't know 0 

42. Additional comments / action 

0 Responses 

Page 93

Agenda Item 12



5/18/2021 Governance Survey (Edit) Microsoft Forms 

43. Does the Governance Committee review management’s Letter of Representation? 

Yes 4 

No 0 

Don't know 3 

44. Additional comments / action 

0 Responses 

45. Does the Governance Committee have a mechanism to keep it aware of topical legal and 

regulatory issues, for example by receiving circulars and through training? 

Yes 5 

No 1 

Don't know 1 

46. Additional comments / action 

1 Response 

Page 94

Agenda Item 12



5/18/2021 Governance Survey (Edit) Microsoft Forms 

47. Does the Governance Committee approve, annually and in detail, the internal Governance 

strategic and annual plans including consideration of whether the scope of internal 
Governance work addresses the authority’s significant risks? 

Yes 7 

No 0 

Don't know 0 

48. Additional comments / action 

0 Responses 

49. Does the Governance Committee receive periodic reports from the Internal Audit Service, 
including an annual report from the Head of Internal Audit? 

Yes 7 

No 0 

Don't know 0 

50. Additional comments / action 

0 Responses 

Page 95

Agenda Item 12



Governance Survey (Edit) Microsoft Forms 

51. Are follow-up audits by internal audit monitored by the Governance Committee and does the 

Committee consider the adequacy of implementation of recommendations? 

Yes 6 

No 1 

Don't know 0 

52. Additional comments / action 

Latest Responses 

"as internal audit has just need done, too early to say"1 Response 

53. Is there appropriate co-operation between the internal and external Auditors? 

Yes 6 

No 0 

Don't know 1 

54. Additional comments / action 

Latest Responses 

"don't know how to monitor"2 Responses 

55. Are internal Audit performance measures monitored by the Governance Committee? 

Yes 6 

No 1 

Don't know 0 

Page 96

Agenda Item 12



5/18/2021 Governance Survey (Edit) Microsoft Forms 

56. Additional comments / action 

0 Responses 

57. Has the Governance Committee considered the information it wishes to receive from internal 
audit? 

Yes 7 

No 0 

Don't know 0 

58. Additional comments / action 

0 Responses 

59. Do the external Auditors present and discuss their Governance plans and strategy with the 

Governance Committee (recognising the statutory duties of external Audit)? 

Yes 7 

No 0 

Don't know 0 

60. Additional comments / action 

0 Responses 

Page 97

Agenda Item 12



5/18/2021 Governance Survey (Edit) Microsoft Forms 

61. Does the Governance Committee review the external Auditor’s annual report to those charged 

with governance? 

Yes 7 

No 0 

Don't know 0 

62. Additional comments / action 

0 Responses 

63. Are reports on the work of external audit and other inspection agencies presented to the 

committee, including the annual audit and inspection letter? 

Yes 7 

No 0 

Don't know 0 

64. Additional comments / action 

0 Responses 

65. Does the Governance Committee assess the performance of External Audit? 

Yes 7 

No 0 

Don't know 0 

Page 98

Agenda Item 12



5/18/2021 Governance Survey (Edit) Microsoft Forms 

66. Additional comments / action 

0 Responses 

67. Does the Governance committee have a designated clerk from Corporate and Community 

Services? 

Yes 7 

No 0 

68. Additional comments / action 

0 Responses 

69. Does the Governance Committee plan one year ahead with a work programme to cover issues 

on a cyclical basis? 

Yes 6 

No 0 

Don't know 1 

70. Additional comments / action 

0 Responses 

Page 99

Agenda Item 12



5/18/2021 Governance Survey (Edit) Microsoft Forms 

71. Do reports to the Governance Committee communicate relevant information at the right 
frequency, time, and in a format that is effective? 

Yes 6 

No 1 

72. Additional comments / action 

Latest Responses 1 Response 

73. Are minutes prepared and circulated promptly to the appropriate people? 

Yes 7 

No 0 

Don't know 0 

74. Additional comments / action 

None 

75. Please give details of any strategic or wide-ranging issues which the Governance Committee 

has considered in the past. 

Latest Responses 

"encouraging policies and plans are complete with greater accuracy" 
4 Responses "service plans" 

Page 100

Agenda Item 12



Governance Survey (Edit) Microsoft Forms 

76. Please give details of any strategic or wide-ranging issues which the Governance Committee 

should consider. 

Latest Responses 

"challenge and help develop proposals on strategy"3 Responses 

77. How do you think the Committee could tackle the problems? 

Latest Responses 

"allocate each member with an area of interest and rigorous evaluatio…
2 Responses 

78. How do you feel the Governance Committee has made a difference (to any issues)? 

Latest Responses 

"given an impetus to services to complete reports and policies" 
4 Responses "to be frank i feel it is very much in the background and although willi… 

79. Are there any areas in which you believe the Committee has failed to deliver? 

Latest Responses 

"Scrutiny of staffing matters which have failed to have been dealt with… 

"no"4 Responses 
"arrangements for corporate reporting, analysis of risk applied to proje… 

80. How could this have been resolved or improved? 

Latest Responses 

"Dedicated mechanisms for governance to step in where escalation of … 

2 Responses "by making recommendations to other committees without fear of offe… 

81. How would you improve the Committee and its work? 

Latest Responses 

"n/a" 
3 Responses "Independent board member. Be more entrepreneurial within realistic … 

Page 101

Agenda Item 12



Page 102

Agenda Item 12



Governance Survey Raw Data (results) (002)

ID Start time Does the Governance 

Committee have written 

terms of reference that 

are approved by the 

council and reviewed 

periodically?

Has the Governance 

Committee been 

provided with sufficient 

membership, authority 

and resources to 

perform its role 

effectively and 

independently?

Additional comments / 

action2

Does the Governance 

Committee make a 

formal annual report 

on its work and 

performance during the 

year to Full Council?

Has the Governance 

Committee Chair either 

previous knowledge of, 

or received appropriate 

training on, financial 

and risk management, 

accounting concepts 

and standards, and the 

regulatory regime?

Additional comments / 

action4

When you joined the 

Governance Committee 

were you provided with 

appropriate induction 

training?

Additional comments / 

action5

Have all Members' 

skills and experiences 

been assessed and 

training given for 

identified gaps?

Additional comments / 

action6

1 4/15/21 15:45:40 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No

2 5/10/21 10:29:08 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No

3 5/10/21 15:29:56 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Don't know

4 5/11/21 8:41:57 Yes Yes Yes Don't know Had to put this answer 

as I actually have not 

been specifically told 

the Chair has but one 

would assume so.

Yes Don't know Again - can’t comment 

as answer not known

5 5/14/21 13:03:36 Yes Don't know I would like to see 

further training for 

committee members

Yes Don't know Yes No

6 5/14/21 13:21:01 Yes Yes Yes Don't know No I have nothing to 

compare it with (KJ- 

selected No as answer 

compulsory - and 

nothing ticked on form)

Yes I presume so (KJ- 

selected Yes as answer 

compulsory - and 

nothing ticked on form)

7 5/17/21 20:41:47 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Don't know

P
age 103

A
genda Item

 12
A

ppendix A



Governance Survey Raw Data (results) (002)

ID

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

Does each Member 

declare their business 

interests at each 

Committee meeting?

Additional comments / 

action7

Are Members 

sufficiently 

independent of the 

Council's other key 

Committees?

Additional comments / 

action8

Are members attending 

meetings on a regular 

basis and, if not, is 

appropriate action 

taken?

Additional comments / 

action9

Are meetings free and 

open without political 

influences being 

displayed?

Does the authority's 

Section 151 officer or 

deputy attend all 

meetings?

Does the Governance 

Committee consider 

how meaningful the 

Annual Governance 

Statement is?

Additional comments / 

action12

Does the Governance 

Committee satisfy itself 

that the system of 

internal control has 

operated effectively 

throughout the 

reporting period?

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

No Only if it’s relevant to a 

specific agenda item

Yes Yes Yes Yes No Not at every meeting Yes

Yes I would hope so No How to distinguish? If a 

discipline matter comes 

up about an officer?

No If a member is not 

attending it should be 

asked why? maybe 

additional support 

required or replace?

Yes Yes No No

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

No Don't know Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

P
age 104

A
genda Item

 12
A

ppendix A



Governance Survey Raw Data (results) (002)

ID

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

Additional comments / 

action13

Has the Governance 

Committee considers 

how it integrates with 

other committees that 

may have responsibility 

for risk management?

Has the Governance 

Committee (with 

delegated 

responsibility) or the 

Full Council adopted 

"Managing the Risk of 

Fraud - Actions to 

Counter Fraud and 

Corruption"?

Additional comments / 

action15

Does the Governance 

Committee ensure that 

the "Actions to Counter 

Fraud and Corruption" 

are being 

implemented?

Is the Governance 

Committee made 

aware of the role of risk 

management in the 

preparation of the 

Internal Audit Plan?

Does the Governance 

Committee review the 

Authority's Strategic 

Risk Register at least 

every six months?

Does the Governance 

Committee monitor 

how the Authority 

assesses its risk?

Does the Governance 

Committee consider 

specifically: 

• the suitability of 

accounting policies and 

treatments 

• major judgments 

made 

• large write-offs

• changes in accounting 

treatment 

• the r...

Additional comments / 

action20

Is a Governance 

Committee meeting 

scheduled to receive 

the external Auditor’s 

report to those charged 

with governance 

including a discussion 

of proposed 

adjustments to the 

accounts and other 

issue...

Don't know Yes Don't know Don't know Yes Yes Yes Yes

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Yes Yes Yes Yes Don't know Yes Yes Yes

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

no because there is not 

a full understanding

No Yes still concerned about 

fraud

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes however decisions, 

promises seem to be 

taken without 

consulting the 

governance committee 

as to the overall cost. Eg 

Westdown affordable 

housing

Yes

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Don't know Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

P
age 105

A
genda Item

 12
A

ppendix A



Governance Survey Raw Data (results) (002)

ID

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

Does the Governance 

Committee review 

management’s Letter 

of Representation?

Does the Governance 

Committee have a 

mechanism to keep it 

aware of topical legal 

and regulatory issues, 

for example by 

receiving circulars and 

through training?

Additional comments / 

action23

Does the Governance 

Committee approve, 

annually and in detail, 

the internal 

Governance strategic 

and annual plans 

including consideration 

of whether the scope of 

internal Governance 

work addresses...

Does the Governance 

Committee receive 

periodic reports from 

the Internal Audit 

Service, including an 

annual report from the 

Head of Internal Audit?

Are follow-up audits by 

internal audit 

monitored by the 

Governance Committee 

and does the 

Committee consider 

the adequacy of 

implementation of 

recommendations?

Additional comments / 

action26

Is there appropriate co-

operation between the 

internal and external 

Auditors?

Additional comments / 

action27

Are internal Audit 

performance measures 

monitored by the 

Governance 

Committee?

Has the Governance 

Committee considered 

the information it 

wishes to receive from 

internal audit?

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Don't know Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Don't know Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Yes Yes Circulars received 

include those issued by 

outside dept’s and 

bodies such as the LGA - 

not wholly reliant on 

NDC Officers

Yes Yes Yes Yes Having just come back onto 

this committee I would 

assume that the level of 

cooperation between the 

two - given there was a 

change from when I was 

last on the committee last 

year - has been maintained

Yes Yes

Yes No Yes Yes No as internal audit has just 

need done, too early to 

say

Don't know don't know how to monitor No Yes

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Don't know Don't know Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

P
age 106

A
genda Item

 12
A

ppendix A



Governance Survey Raw Data (results) (002)

ID

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

Do the external 

Auditors present and 

discuss their 

Governance plans and 

strategy with the 

Governance Committee 

(recognising the 

statutory duties of 

external Audit)?

Does the Governance 

Committee review the 

external Auditor’s 

annual report to those 

charged with 

governance?

Are reports on the 

work of external audit 

and other inspection 

agencies presented to 

the committee, 

including the annual 

audit and inspection 

letter?

Does the Governance 

Committee assess the 

performance of 

External Audit?

Does the Governance 

committee have a 

designated clerk from 

Corporate and 

Community  Services?

Does the Governance 

Committee plan one 

year ahead with a work 

programme to cover 

issues on a cyclical 

basis?

Do reports to the 

Governance Committee 

communicate relevant 

information at the right 

frequency, time, and in 

a format that is 

effective?

Additional comments / 

action36

Are minutes prepared 

and circulated 

promptly to the 

appropriate people?

Please give details of any strategic or 

wide-ranging issues which the 

Governance Committee has 

considered in the past.

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Overseeing the committee structure, 

financial risks to the authority etc 

corporate risk register etc

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes - very effective and 

with great detail on a 

rolling basis across the 

key areas.

Yes Can only speak from when I was last on 

this committee but one that sticks in 

mind is the real threat of cyber attacks 

which has to be taken seriously (as it is). 

I’m not sure how (in the interim) the 

Council has defended itself against the 

increase in ransom ware threats

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Don't know No Yes service plans

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes encouraging policies and plans are 

complete with greater accuracy

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

P
age 107

A
genda Item

 12
A

ppendix A



Governance Survey Raw Data (results) (002)

ID

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

Please give details of any strategic or wide-ranging issues 

which the Governance Committee should consider.

How do you think the 

Committee could tackle 

the problems?

How do you feel the Governance 

Committee has made a difference 

(to any issues)?

Are there any areas in which you 

believe the Committee has failed to 

deliver?

How could this have been resolved or 

improved?

How would you improve the Committee and its 

work?

The effectiveness of committee structure 2 years on? Ensuring effective challenge and 

oversight of decisions. 

Coming out of lockdown I think the Council needs to 

consider it’s ongoing external revenue streams to prepare 

itself for possible further cuts from central gov’t. Further 

opportunities needs to be explored. I’d also suggest that 

the system of Cllr grants is reviewed in so far as follow up 

on how monies awarded have been used by recipients. I’d 

also go further on this subject and say that Cllrs should be 

encouraged to only give grants in the majority of cases if it’s 

on a match funding basis. My overview is that too many 

recipients are wholly reliant on receiving annual grants.

As previously It operates within its remit so the 

answer is yes, it does make a 

difference - sometimes only small 

(but nevertheless important) across 

many areas.

No From my time on the Committee I believe it 

operated effectively with members co-operating 

well without the shadow of political allegiances 

sneaking in.

challenge and help develop proposals on strategy allocate each member with 

an area of interest and 

rigorous evaluation of their 

performance by peers

to be frank i feel it is very much in 

the background and although willing 

to take part in strategic objectives, it 

needs to determine how far it is 

willing to take on those risks and at 

the same time maintain sound risk 

management policies that allow the 

council to take on new challenges.

arrangements for corporate reporting, 

analysis of risk applied to projects, and 

possible relations with other committees.

by making recommendations to other 

committees without fear of offence?

Independent board member. Be more 

entrepreneurial within realistic boundaries. Ensure 

the council can afford projects and a full option 

appraisal which is unbiased and the best interest of 

the council. Regular report from the Chair to update 

and inform new and existing members.

given an impetus to services to 

complete reports and policies

no n/a

Scrutiny of staffing matters which have 

failed to have been dealt with 

satisfactorily by chief executive. Matters 

reported to chair of governance should 

be investigated. 

Dedicated mechanisms for governance to 

step in where escalation of matters to the 

chief executive have failed to be 

satisfactorily addressed

P
age 108

A
genda Item

 12
A

ppendix A



Governance Committee Work Programme 2021/22 

This work programme provides structure for the Audit Committee to ensure it receives reports and updates at the 

appropriate meetings throughout the year. It is reviewed and updated at each committee meeting.  

 

North Devon Council Reports and updates: 

Dates of forthcoming meetings: 

 

8 Jun 2021 27 Sep 2021 Extraordinary  

20 Oct 2021 
16 Nov 2021 4 Jan 2022 8 Mar 2022 

Review of the Committee’s 
Terms of Reference (TB) 
 

     Report Due 

Annual Review of the 
Committee’s effectiveness (JT) 
 

Report Due     Report Due 

Half Yearly Report from the 
Chair of the Governance 
Committee (KJ). 
 

 Report Due 
Sept each year 

 Moved from 
Sept 27 

 Report Due 
March each 
year 

Annual Governance Statement 
 
 

 Report Due Moved from 
Sept 27 

   

Statement of Accounts 
 
 

Report Due-
moved to 
Sept 

Report Due Moved from 
Sept 27 

   

Letter of Representation (JT) 
 
 

 Report Due Moved from 
Sept 27 

   

Compensation payments made 
under delegated powers. (CH) 
 

Report Due      

Procedure for the Conduct of 
Investigations 

Report Due      

P
age 109

A
genda Item

 14



Dates of forthcoming meetings: 

 

8 Jun 2021 27 Sep 2021 Extraordinary  

20 Oct 2021 
16 Nov 2021 4 Jan 2022 8 Mar 2022 

Update Report for the 
Investigations Update 

 Report Due  Moved from 
Sept 27 

 Report Due 

 
Part B: 
Corporate Risk Register (SH) 
 

 Report Due  Moved from 
Sept 27 

 Report Due 

Major changes to Accounting 
Policies Management 
procedures to be reported by 
the Head of Resources 
 

     Report Due 

 
Update on Governance 
Arrangements  
 

    Report Due  

Update on Business Continuity 
 

    Report Due  

Audit Recommendation Tracker 
 

Report Due Report Due  Report Due Report Due Report Due 

Work Programme 
 
 

Report Due Report Due  Report Due Report Due Report Due 

 

Internal Audit Agenda Items: 

Dates of forthcoming meetings: 

 

8 Jun 2021 27 Sep 2021 Extraordinary  

20 Oct 2021 
16 Nov 2021 4 Jan 2022 8 Mar 2022 

Internal Audit Annual report 
 

Report Due      

Internal Audit Strategy and Plan 
 

     Report Due 

P
age 110

A
genda Item

 14



Dates of forthcoming meetings: 8 Jun 2021 27 Sep 2021 Extraordinary 

20 Oct 2021 
16 Nov 2021 4 Jan 2022 8 Mar 2022 

Internal Audit Charter March each 
year 

Internal Audit Progress Report Report Due Report Due Report Due Report Due Report Due 

External Audit Items: 

Dates of forthcoming meetings: 8 Jun 2021 29 Sep 2021 Extraordinary 

20 Oct 2021 
16 Nov 2021 4 Jan 2022 8 Mar 2022 

External Audit - Fee Letter 

External Audit - Findings Report Report Due Moved from 
Sept 29th 

External Audit - Annual Audit 
Report (*previously Letter) 

Moved from 
Nov 16th 

External Audit - Plan Report Due Report Due

External Audit - Progress Report 
and Sector Update 

Report Due Report Due Report Due Report Due Report Due 

Updated 2/11/21 

P
age 111

A
genda Item

 14



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 113

Agenda Item 16
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meetings held on 8th June 2021 and 10th October 2021
	Minutes
	Minutes of Previous Meeting

	6 Half Yearly Report from the Chair of the Governance Committee
	Half Yearly Report of the Chair of Governance Committee
	Review of the Committee’s Terms of Reference
	Annual Review of the Committee’s Effectiveness
	Internal Audit Report – Leisure Centre Project
	Business Continuity
	Recommendations to update the Member Code of Conduct
	Procedure for the Conduct of Investigations
	Anti Money-Laundering Policy,
	Whistle-Blowing Policy,
	Anti-Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy,
	Counter-fraud Strategy and response Plan

	Compensation Payments Made Under Delegated Powers
	Audit Recommendation Tracker
	Corporate Risk Register
	External and Internal Audit
	Internal Audit Plan Report 2021/22
	Internal Audit Charter Strategy 2021/22
	Internal Audit Progress Report 2021/22
	Internal Audit Annual Report
	Internal Audit – Cyber Security – Malware and Ransomware
	Internal Audit Parking Operations Report
	External Audit Progress Report and Sector Update
	External Audit – Audit Plan
	External Audit – Informing the Risk Assessment



	7 Appointment of External Auditors from 2023-24
	North Devon Council
	1. INTRODUCTION
	2. RECOMMENDATIONS
	6. EQUALITIES ASSESSMENT
	7. CONSTITUTIONAL CONTEXT

	8. STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY
	9. BACKGROUND PAPERS
	10. STATEMENT OF INTERNAL ADVICE

	Appendix A - North Devon District Council invitation

	8 Internal Audit Progress Report 2021-22
	Introduction
	Opinion Statement
	Executive Summary of Audit Results
	Value Added
	Appendix 1 – Summary of audit reports and findings for 2021-22

	10 Audit Recommendation Tracker
	1 Introduction
	1.1 This is the regular progress report to the Committee in relation to action taken to address internal and external audit recommendations.
	2 Recommendations
	3 Reasons for Recommendations
	4 Report

	Table A) Live Audit Reports, Status & Numbers
	Table B: Audit recommendations setting completed since the last Governance Committee
	5 Progress tracking of Annual Governance Statement
	6 Constitution Context

	7 Statement of Internal Advice

	11 Request for Approval to pay Feedback Compensation
	North Devon Council
	1. INTRODUCTION
	2. RECOMMENDATIONS
	6. EQUALITIES ASSESSMENT
	7. CONSTITUTIONAL CONTEXT

	8. STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY
	9. BACKGROUND PAPERS
	10. STATEMENT OF INTERNAL ADVICE

	APPENDIX 1 - stage two draft complaint response
	1. You are unhappy with the way xxxxxxx dealt with your pre-application advice for the erection of a log cabin within your, garden, namely:
	2. You explain Xxxxxx rang your agent on 19.01.2021 and explained they had ‘made a mistake’, as they had not realised planning policy DM18 was not for the 'area' as they had previously advised, it was site-specific;


	12 Annual Review of the Committee's Effectiveness - Update
	Appendix 2: Governance Survey Raw Data

	14 Work Programme 2021-22
	Governance Committee Work Programme 2021/22
	North Devon Council Reports and updates:
	Internal Audit Agenda Items:
	External Audit Items:


	16 Corporate Risk Register

